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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 

On June 9, 2012, the City of Saco celebrated its 2501h anniversary of the incorporation of 
Pepperrellborough (later, Saco). Pepperrellborough was named after the generous benefactor Sir William 
Pepperrell of Kittery, who donated land for a meetinghouse, burying ground, and common land; and the 
district maintained the name Pepperrellborough until 1805, when the town decided the name should be 

changed to the older, more convenient designation of Saco. 

Prepared by: 
Cheryl Fournier 

Finance Director, City of Saco, Maine 
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City of Saco 

Finance Office 
Cheryl Fournier, Finance Director 
Saco City Hall 
300 Main Street, Saco, ME 04072 

December 10, 2012 

Honorable Mark Johnston, Mayor 
and Distinguished Members of the City Council 

300 Main Street 
Saco, Maine 04072 

Tel: (207) 282-1032 
Fax: (207) 282-8209 

Email: cheryl.fournier@sacomaine.org 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Saco, Maine for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2012, is hereby submitted in accordance with the requirements of both our City Charter and state statutes. 
The Chaiter and statutes require that the City of Saco issue annually a repo1t of its financial position and 
activity, and that this report be audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. 
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented, and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City of Saco. To the best of onr knowledge and 
belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all rnaterial respects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly 
the financial position and results of operations of the City of Saco on a government-wide and fund basis. 
All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City's activities 
have been included. 

The comprehensive annual financial repmt is prepared in accordance with Accounting Principles 
Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as promulgated by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) require that 
management provide a narrative introduction, overview ai1d analysis to accompany the basic financial 
statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is 
designed to compliment MD&A and shonld be read in conjunction with it. The City of Saco, Maine's 
MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

Governmental Structure, Local Economic Condition and Outlook 

The City of Saco, Maine, incorporated in 1867, is located at the mouth of the Saco River on the southerly 
side of Saco Bay in the Gulf of Maine, in the southern coastal section of the State and is the eleventh 
largest city by population in the State of Maine. The City of Saco continues to be a key area within the 
state for residential growth, as well as a key ai·ea where industrial and commercial companies are 
investing. The City of Saco was ranked fifth within the State of Maine for this growth. Saco has a land 
area of 38.5 square miles and an estimated population of 18,482 based on the most recent census. The 
City is empowered to levy a prope1ty tax on both real and personal property located within its boundaries. 
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The City operates uuder the Mayor-Council - City Administrator form of government. Policy making 
and legislative authority vested in a seven member City Council. The Council is elected on a non-partisan 
basis. The mayor and all council members are elected to two-year terms from seven districts (wards). 
The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the city budget, 
confirming mayoral nominations of committees, and the City Administrator. The City Administrator is 
responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day 
operations of the City, and for appointing the heads of the City's departments, some with City Conncil 
confirmation. 

The City of Saco, Maine provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; sanitation 
services; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets and infrastructure; waste water treatment 
plant (Water Resource Recovery); solid waste collection; health and social welfare; recreation; general 
administration, and economic development. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Saco's financial planning and control. All 
departments of the City of Saco are required to submit requests for appropriation to the Finance Director 
in January of each year. The City's Finance Director uses these requests as the stmting point for 
developing a proposed budget. The City Administrator then presents this proposed budget to the City 
Council for review in March of each year. The City Council is required to hold public hearings on the 
proposed budget and to adopt a final budget by no later thm1 June 30, the close of the City's fiscal year. 
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund m1d department. Both transfers of appropriations within a 
department and between various depaitments require the approval of the governing council. Budget-to­
actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual govenunental fund for which ai1 
appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the General Fund, this compai·ison is presented as part 
of the basic financial statements for the governmental funds. 

Major Initiatives Fiscal Year 2011-2012 

After much work, financial planning and commitment to our vision of making Saco a community with a 
high quality of life for all its citizens, the City again ends the year in a solid financial position. Central to 
this vision is a sustainable economy that offers an opportunity for everyone to have rewarding 
employment and for business to prosper, now m1d in the future. The people of Saco have brought this 
vision into reality by working together ai1d building on our tradition of hard work, dedication and 
ingenuity. 

Economic Development. The City has worked for decades to improve the economic development 
climate in Saco, and the proof of those efforts is the steady increase in the City's assessed valuation, 
which is due to growth in the industrial and commercial sector, as well as strong residential growth. 
Notable additions to the City's economic development base are dne to the City's continually expanding 
business parks, expandiug auto dealerships along Route 1, and the expanding recreation sector with large 
indoor hockey aud soccer facilities and theme parks. 

Assessed Valuation. For the 21" consecutive year, the City's valuation has steadily increased, with the 
exception of fiscal year June 30, 1999, where the valuation slightly decreased due to the State mandated 
homestead exemption of approximately $25 million. This exemption reduced the taxable valuation for 
the taxpayers of the City but was substituted by a reimbursement from the State. Siuce fiscal year 1991, 
the assessed valuation has risen from $729,675,000, to this year's $2,116,404,600. This equates to a 
190.0% increase over this 21-yeai· period. However, this increase has not been reflected prop01tionately 
between residential and commercial growth. In 1990, residential prope1ty accounted for 68% of the 
City's valuation. This year, residential property taxes will also account for approximately 72.8% of the 
taxes paid, while business/industry will account for 27.2%. 
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Financial Management. The City created objectives during the budget process for 2012 that included: 
keep taxes stable, create a capital program, and keep operating appropriations stable. We did not meet 
these goals during the budgeting process. We had an increase to the tax rate of 4.4% due to the decrease 
in revenue. No capital program was created for the current fiscal year. We did meet the last item as our 
increase of operating expenses was only 2.8%. 

Strategic Planning. The City is committed to ensruing sound financial management of public funds. 
This includes monitoring goals and objectives through the Strategic Plan, maintaining sufficient fund 
balances in major governmental funds, and adhering to the highest management standards. The Strategic 
Plan was last adopted by the City Council in fiscal year 2010. In January 2012, the Council created a 
listing of Objectives for the following two years, but did not create a priority listing of these Objectives. 

Capital Improvements and Debt Service. The City has prepared a five-year Capital Improvement Plan 
Policy. This policy outlines all of the capital assets currently owned by the City, their historical costs, 
their estimated useful lives, and their estimated replacement years and costs. With this information, the 
City will be better able to plan for replacements which will aid in our budget preparation in future years 
as we will have a better idea of fiscal impacts due to replacement being projected. In the current fiscal 
year, approximately $165,000 was budgeted to fund emergency capital improvement projects. The City 
continues to remain significantly below state mandated thresholds for allowable debt liability. 

Comprehensive Plan. A comprehensive plan for the City's development was adopted in October of 
1999. This plan sets out development policies and goals for the next decade and is updated frequently. A 
new Comprehensive Plan was completed in fiscal year 2011. 

Interlocal service efforts with the City of Biddeford and the Town of Old Orchard Beach. Saco, 
Biddeford and Old Orchard Beach continue to build among the many services we provide jointly, 
including the hru·bor river patrol efforts, various training efforts for employees, combined purchasing to 
take advantage of economies of scale, and combined negotiations of cable franchise agreements, to nrune 
just a few. Interlocal agreements are also in place for fire, police and emergency management services. 
Joint employees with neighboring towns cover such areas as recycling and GIS mapping. 

Biddeford-Saco-Old Orchard Beach Transit Committee. The City is a member of the Biddeford-Saco­
Old Orchard Beach Transit Committee which is a jointly governed organization. The Committee has 
operated a public mass transit passenger bus service within and between the three municipalities nuder a 
voluntary interlocal agreement since 1977. The City of Saco's contribution to the conunittee for the yeru· 
ended June 30, 2012 was $115,000. The Transit Committee does not meet the definition of a component 
unit or a joint venture because there is no ongoing financial interest or responsibility by the participating 
governments. 

Major Initiatives - 2012-2013 Goals 

Between Jrurnary and March of 2012, the Mayor, City Council, City Administrator, and Depru·trnent 
Heads worked together to create a long listing of issues, goals, and priorities. After a lot of thought, the 
long list of hundreds of items was summarized down to a short list of eight categories. 

The City's goals established during March 5, 2012 workshop were: 
A. Sustain and improve upon city services; 
B. Improve tl1e city's financial infrastructure; 
C. Maintain taxes at present levels; 
D. Revitalize the city's Main Street; 
E. Improve and sustain Saco shoreline; 
F. Study and improve parking and traffic flow; 
G. Development and activate a sustainable Capital Improvement Plan to include improving the 

infrastructure of the road ru1d sewer systems; and 
H. Work collaboratively with the City of Biddeford. 
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The above categories have multiple objectives created, aud mauy of these objectives along with other 
items will be department head's goals (at least 240 hours of work) for the following years that will 
include milestones and descriptions of the goals. Each department head has three objectives, each taking 
240 hours or more to complete. These objectives are pmt of the depmtment head review process. 

The City will continue to build upon our past successes. The City will also continue to focus its efforts on 
economic development, fiscal accountability, expanding Saco's tax base and reaffirming our commitment 
to the public to improve service delivery aud enhance the quality of life in our community. 

The City is working towm·ds ensuring that services are provided in the most efficient aud effective way. 
The City is currently formulating a mixture of performauce measurements aud comparable statistics 
between other Maine communities. This will be presented in the form of output measures, outcome 
measures and efficiency measures for each City department. These measures will be reported in the 
current yem·'s report. In 2004, the City received a $30,000 grant through the National Center for 
Innovative Technology to further this effort and to publish a pelformm1ce information rep01t on this data. 
The City was successful at completing its pe1formance measurement reports and received a national 
Certificate of Excellence for Service Eff01ts and Accomplishments Repo1ting from the Association of 
Governmental Accountants (AGA) for all eight years of the published reports. This repmt substantially 
complied with the Governmental Accounting Standm·ds Board's sixteen suggested criteria for these types 
of reports. In fiscal year 2009 aud 2011, the City received smaller grant awm·d of $5,000 from the 
National Center for Civic Innovation to complete the City's citizen satisfaction survey. The results were 
included in the City's fiscal year 2009 performance measurement rep01t. The City completed the citizen 
satisfaction survey in 2012, and progress was made in the majority of areas. 

The City has linked the achievement of each department's milestones to the performance based pay 
system already in place, which rewards employees for the achievement of these objectives, thus creating a 
complete alignment and strategic focus for the entire City. The last integral piece of this process will be 
to solicit feedback from the citizen's within the City of Saco on our progress to assure that our strategic 
goals and objectives are aligned with the service needs of our community. Each year they will be 
revisited for this purpose and updated based on the feedback received. Both grant awards provided the 
City with the funding to pursue fmther outreach to the citizens of our community. 

S tr ate g 1c A I ig n m e n t P r o c e s s 

The following represents the City Council vision statement and the strategic goals within the City's 
Strategic Plan. Strategic goals are general statements of purpose that pe1tain to how the City achieves its 
mission and vision. The strategic goal generally addresses end results rather than specific actions. A goal 
provides a framework and direction for City departments to align their objectives and plans to achieve 
their goals. 
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Vision - Valnes - Philosophy - Ethics 

The City has three perspective vision statements, which are referred to regularly as a basis for discerning 
aud justifying appropriate decisions and actions. The first one represents the global perspective of the 
elected officials; the second one represents the vision of constituents residing within the City of Saco. 
This citizen vision was vetted through a series of citizen focus group meetings; the third one represents 
the perspective of the City management in the delivery of City services. 

1. City Council Vision: "Our vision is a high quality of life for Saco citizens. Central to this vision 
is a sustainable economy that offers an opportunity for everyone to have rewarding employment 
and for business to prosper, now and in the future. The people of Saco bring this vision into 
reality by working together and building on our tradition of hard work, dedication and 
ingenuity." 

2. Citizens' statement that symbolizes the City of Saco: "Saco is a city that provides families of all 
kinds with a community that values its heritage, cherishes its environment, balances its growth, 
and offers a concerned and caring spirit". 

3. Staff's statement of vision for the City: "To Enhance Our Community through Exceptional 
Service". 

Strategic Goals Categories 

Downtown Revitalization 
The City recognizes the downtown's significance as the economic and community center. The 
City will continue to promote the revitalization of the downtown aud will support groups like 
Saco Spirit. 

Infrastructure and Capital Development and Maintenance 
The City is committed to maintaining aud improving the City's infrastructure, facilities, and 

equipment by maintaining the existing infrastructure aud planning for future needs. 

Growth Management 
J.M.., The City will encourage sustainable growth aud development in appropriate areas while 
~~ protecting natural resources aud rural character, in order to maximize the efficient use of 

mnnicipal services. 

Environmental Protection and Snstainable Development 
~ The City will protect the environment and natural resources, and will employ the concept of 
~ sustainability in order to enhance the well being of future generations. 

Technological Innovation and Implementation :!:!: The City will develop and implement technologies to improve services. 

Human Resource Investment 

• 
The City recognizes that employees axe a valuable resource that requires investment to ensure 
that staff will attain the knowledge, skills, aud abilities necessary to meet cmmnunity ueeds. 

Leisure Services Investment iii The City understands the need for recreational aud cultural opportunities for its citizens' and will 
· · continue to explore, upgrade, and develop new outlets to meet these needs. 

Meeting the Financial Needs for City Services 
H~!J The City will support and adequately plan for the financial needs of the community. 
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Public Safety 
• The City will provide a safe environment for its citizens and visitors. 

Traffic 
~ The City will endeavor to provide safe, reliable and unfettered movement of people and freight m through the City. 

Significant Accomplishments of Fiscal Year 2012 

Public Safety 
•!• 2"d Citizen Police Academy Graduates - Very Successful, March 2012 
•!• Study completed on merging Emergency Medical Services and Fire dispatch with the City of 

Biddeford. 

Infrastructure and Capital 
•!• Paving Bond $2.2 million Expended; 
•!• Trail Bond $0.5 million Expended; 
•!• CMP Completes the Installation of the New Twin 115 Line Upgrade in Saco - Will Meet Saco's 

Power Needs Well into the Future; 
•!• Completed the Location of the Public Services Center; 
•!• Finished $4.2 million Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade; 
•!• Replaced sanitary sewer lines: 800 feet Main Street and 400 feet on Locke Street; 
•!• Installed new sidewalk 2,500 feet on Bayview and 3,200 feet on Route #1; 
•!• City Hall HV AC study completed; 
•!• Freedom Act Grant for access improvements at transit stops. 

Technological Innovation & Implementation 
•!• Emergency Medical Dispatch was upgraded to PRO-QA automated software. 
•!• The Criminal Investigative Division received new technology and training to forensically 

examine computers in house. 

Environmental Protection & Sustainable Development 
•!• ISO Building Code Enforcement Evaluation Rep01t Includes Upgrade for Saco- high marks for 

Saco; 
•!• Silver LEED Certification awarded by the U.S. Green Building Council in April 2012 for the 

New Fire Depmtrnent Facility; 
•!• Pump stations upgraded at Factory Island and Mm·shwood Circle. 

Leisure Services Investment 
•!• Eastern Trail Bridge over Route One Completed November 2011; 
•!• Eastern Trail Connects the Thornton Academy Trail with Old Orchard Beach May 2012; 
•!• River Walk Trail extended thmtlcs to FPL easement on Saco Island, October 2011; 
•!• June 9, 2012 City Celebrates the Sesquibicentennial- 250 years old, A pm·ade, ice cream social 

and old fashioned street fair m·e among the many events celebrated through June m1d July; 
•!• Playful City USA Recognition for 2"d Year May 2012; 
•!• $15,000 Let's Playground Grm1t Awm·d, November 2011; 
•!• Tree City USA Awarded for 2"<1 Year May 2012; 
•!• Cascade Falls, "Trout Pond Loop" First Phase Complete September 2011. 

Growth Managen1ent 
•!• One Lot Sold in the Spring Hill Industrial Park; 
•!• Saco Selected as a "Certified Business Friendly Community" - June 2012; 
•!• Council approved changes to the City's floodplain management ordinance that reqnires a new or 

damaged building to be elevated not one but three feet above the 100 year base floodplain 
elevation. The City of Saco is the first municipality in Maine to do so. May 21, 2012 through 
efforts of Sea Level Adaptation Working Group (SLAWG); 

•!• 5th Public Opinion Survey Conducted April 2012; 
•!• 2 Citizen Focus Groups Held - Input on the Citizen CentTic Report - October 2011; 
•!• Council Adopted the Comprehensive Plan Implementation Initiated March 7, 2011; 
•!• Economic Development Plan Amended; adopted by Council January 2012. 
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Human Resource Investment 
•!• Introduction of iPads to the City Council and Senior Staff; 
•!• Employee survey revised and updated, 5"' survey of import due to increase in pa1ticipation; 
•!• City Administrator met with 100 employees two at a time and asked what are we doing well and 

what can we do better? 
•!• Feedback Report on the City's Malcolm Baldrige Application November 2011; 
•!• Howard Caiter, WWTP Deputy Director, President of the New England Water Environment 

Association 2011; 
•!• s"' Annual Performance Report Award Febmary 2012; 
•!• William D. Hatfield Award for 2012 awarded to Howard Carter, WWTP Deputy Director by the 

New England Water Environment Association; 
•!• Adopted new health insurance prograin with anticipated savings of 11 % annually, while keeping 

employees substantially whole in terms of coverage. 

Traffic 
•!• PACTS awai·ds Saco and Biddeford $30,000 grant for way finding and signage stndy, July 2011; 
•!• MaineDOT awards Saco and Biddeford funding for design of new pedestrian bridge, July 2011; 
•!• Upgraded traffic signal controller at Ocean Park Road ai1d Main Street, all traffic signal now 

actuated with caineras. 

Downtown Revitalization 
•!• Brand process initiated with Saco Spirit, Chamber of Commerce and Heait of Biddeford in order 

to create a unified mai·keting cainpaign for both communities. 
•!• Neighborhood Blight Prograin • demolished 5 substandard buildings • 3 residential and 2 

commercial - ai1d 3 residential units were rehabbed. 

Meeting Financial Needs for City Services 
•!• First year successful yeai· of using our new Recreation software that enables online registration 

ai1d payments; 
•!• 3"d Annual GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the 

CAFR; 
•!• 2013 Budget Includes a $1.5 million Capital Budget, up from $165,000 in 2012, allowing the city 

to decrease reliance on Fund Balance; 
•!• City Assessor is adjusting real estate values to mai·ket value - current 102% to 95%. 

Financial Information 

The City's Finance Department is responsible for establishing ai1d maintaining internal controls designed 
to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that the 
adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the prepai·ation of financial statements in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The internal controls 
being used are designed to provide reasonable, bnt not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. 
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the costs of control procedures are weighed against 
the expected benefits to be derived, and that the evaluation of costs and benefits requires educated 
estimates and professional judgments by maiiagement. All of the City's internal accounting control 
evaluations occur within this framework. 

As a recipient of federal, state and local financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring that 
adequate internal controls are in place to ensure and document compliai1ce with applicable laws and 
regulations related to these prograius. These internal controls ai·e subject to periodic evaluations by the 
management and finance department staff of the City. 

The City adopts fiscal year budgets that ai·e established in accordance with the various laws that govern 
the City's operations as authorized by the Council. Per City Charter, the legal level of budgetary control 
is at the depaitment level. This means that management cannot overspend departmental budgets without 
the approval of the governing body. These allocations are reviewed quarterly against actnal expenditures, 
and variances are addressed in the qna1terly financial reports presented to the City Council. At mid-year, 
nnless conditions dictate ai1 earlier need, budgets ai·e reviewed, yearend projections are made, and 
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adjustments to the financial plan considered and any necessary changes are legally adopted through the 
passage of an appropriation resolve. 

Relevant Financial Policies: The City's policy prescribes uses of the unassigned fond balances. In 
general, unassigned fond balance is not to be nsed to fond any pmtion of the on-going and routine year to 
year operating expenditures of the City. It is to be used p1imarily to ensure adequate fond balances, to 
respond to unforeseen emergencies, and to provide overall financial stability. 

By Charter, the City is required to maintain a balance of 5% to 10%, and the Council has determined that 
a target of 8.33% is reasonable. Unassigned fond balance in the general fond as of June 30, 2012, was 
9 .6% of expenditures, net of debt service. 

Other information: 

Independent Audit: State Statute and the City Chaiter require ai1 annual audit of all financial records by 
independent certified public accountants. The audit of fiscal year 2012 was performed for the City 
Council, by the firm of Runyon Kersteen Ouellette PA, a firm of licensed Certified Public Accountants. 
The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the 
City of Saco, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are free of material misstatement. The independent 
audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall finai1cial statement presentation. The independent auditor 
concluded, based upon the audit that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion 
that the City of Saco's financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, are fairly presented in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The 
independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the finai1cial section of this report. The 
auditor's reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations cai1 be found in 
a sepai·ately issued repott. 

Awards: The City of Saco received the GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting for many years including fiscal years 2009, 2010, and 201 L The City was recognized for 
performance reporting excellence by receiving the Association of Governmental Accountants' (AGA) 
national Certificate of Excellence in Service Effmts and Accomplishments (SEA) awai·d. As this was the 
eighth consecutive year that the City of Saco received an SEA award. 

Acknowledgements: The prepai·ation of this report would not have been possible without the cooperation 
of all City department heads, as well as the members of the Finance Department. Appreciation is also 
extended to the City Administrator, Richard Michaud, for his consistent support of these effmts. Credit 
must also be extended to the Mayor and the governing City Council for their unfailing support for 
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Saco, Maine's 
finances. I wish to acknowledge the efforts of our independent auditors, Rnnyon Kersteen Ouellette PA, 
for the professional audit work they provided and for all their assistance. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cheryl Fournier 
Finance Director 
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Runyon Kersteen Ouellette ·. Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 

Independent Auditor's Report 

City Council 
City of Saco, Maine: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Saco, 
Maine as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
City of Saco, Maine's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Saco, Maine, as of June 30, 2012, and 
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 10, 
2012 on our consideration of the City of Saco, Maine's internal control over financial reporting and our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audit. 
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City Council 
Page 2 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, modified approach for infrastructure assets and schedule of funding progress as 
listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Saco, Maine's financial statements as a whole. The introductory 
section, combining and individual fund financial statements, exhibits, and statistical section are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. 
The combining and individual fund financial statements and exhibits are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

December 10, 2012 
South Portland, Maine 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Jnne 30, 2012 

As management of the City of Saco, Maine, we offer readers of the City of Saco, Maine's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Saco for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2012. We enconrage readers to consider the inf01mation presented in conjunction with additional information 
that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, the basic financial statements m1d the accompanying notes to 
those financial statements. 

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Saco, Maine (the City) using 
the integrated approach as prescribed by GASE Statement No. 34. 

The Government-wide Financial Statements present the financial picture of the City from the economic resources 
measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They present governmental activities and business-type 
activities separately. These statements include all assets of the City (including infrastructure) as well as all 
liabilities (including long-term debt). Additionally, certain eliminations have occuTI'ed as prescribed by the 
statement in regards to inte1fund activity, payables and receivables. 

The Fund Financial Statements include statements for two categories of activities - governmental and proprietary. 
The governmental activities are prepared nsing the cuTI'ent financial resources measurement focus and modified 
accrual basis of accounting. The proprietary funds are prepm·ed using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-wide 
Financial Statements is provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach. 

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities rep01t information about the City as a whole and 
about its activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities of the City using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them. Net assets are the difference between 
assets and liabilities, which is one way to measure the City's financial health or financial position. Over time, 
increases and decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. Other factors to consider are changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's 
infrastructure. 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we separate the City Activities as follows: 

Governmental Activities - Most of the City's basic services m·e reported in this category, including the 
General Government, Fire, Police, Public Works, Planning and Economic Development, Parks and 
Recreation, Community Services and Librm·y. Prope1ty taxes, user fees, interest income, franchise fees 
and state m1d federal grm1ts finance these activities. 
Business-type Activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover all or most of the cost of certain 
services it provides. The City's Waste Water Treatment Plm1t activities are reported in this category. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

June 30, 2012 

REPORTING THE CITY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 

Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City as a 
whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, management 
establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is 
meeting legal responsibilities for usiug certain taxes, grants or other money. 

Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on 
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. 
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash 
and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a 
detailed shmter-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. 
Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be 
spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund 
financial statements to those in the Government-wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation 
following each Governmental Fund financial statement. 

Proprietary Funds - When the City charges customers for services it provides- whether to outside customers or 
to other units of the City- these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are 
reported in tbe same way that all activities are repmted in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise fund is the same as the business-type activity we report in the 
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for 
proprietary funds. 

THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

The City is providing condensed financial information for fiscal year 2012 with comparative information for 
fiscal year 2011. Our analysis below focuses on the net assets of the City's governmental and business-type 
activities. 

2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 
Governmental Business~type Primary Governmental Business~type Primary 

Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government 
Current and other assets $ 6,116,572 $ 564,956 6,681,528 $ 9,831,080 $ 493,359 $ 10,324,439 
Capital assets 55,269,771 21,678,115 76,947,886 54,744,648 21,755,232 76,499,880 

Total assets 61,386,343 22,243,071 83,629,414 64,575,728 22,248,591 86,824,319 

Non-current liabilities 18,623,371 952,500 19,575,871 23,199,085 1,177,500 24,376,585 
Other liabilities (1,075,331) 3,970,215 2,894,884 (48,781) 4,048,230 3,999,449 

Total liabilities 17,548,040 4,922,715 22,470,755 23,150,304 5,225,730 28,376,034 
Net assets: 

Invested in capital assets 38,950,978 20,725,615 59,676,593 37,693,246 20,577,732 58,270,978 
Restricted 3,248,925 3,248,925 4,555,294 4,555,294 
Unrestricted 1,638,400 (3,405,259) (1,766,859) (823,116) (3,554,871) (4,377,987) 

Total net assets $ 43,838,303 $ 17,320,356 $ 61,158,659 $ 41,425,424 $ 17,022,861 $ 58,448,285 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discnssion and Analysis, Continned 

Jnne 30, 2012 

Our next analysis focuses on changes in net assets of the City's governmental and business-type activities. 

2012 2012 2012 Total 2011 2011 2011 Total 

Governmental Business~type Primary Governmental Business~type Primary 
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government 

Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 
Chm·ges for services $ 2,468,161 2,621,156 5,089,317 2,357,220 2,386,591 4,743,811 

Operating grants and contributions 729,168 729,168 618,630 618,630 

Capital grants and contributions 263,206 263,206 2,396,793 2,396,793 

General Revenues: 

Property taxes 30,931,696 30,931,696 29,181,715 29,181,715 

Motor vehicle excise taxes 3,446,591 3,446,591 3,102,575 3,102,575 

Franchise tax 286,882 286,882 296,908 296,908 

Homestead exemption 286,309 286,309 271,563 271,563 

Other state aid 199,285 199,285 143,064 143,064 

State revenue sharing 1,256,887 1,256,887 1,226,004 1,226,004 

Investment eainings 56,337 56,337 56,603 56,603 

Loss on disposal of assets (260,280) (260,280) 

Miscellaneous revenues 160,436 21,142 181,578 265,241 11,362 276,603 

Total revenues 40,084,958 2,642,298 42,727,256 39,916,316 2,137,673 42,053,989 

Expenses: 
General governn1ent 7,681,100 7,681,100 7,504,789 7,504,789 

Public safety 6,424,834 6,424,834 6,731,354 6,731,354 

Public works 5,579,364 5,579,364 5,286,138 5,286,138 

Housing pro grains 231,752 231,752 269,668 269,668 

Culture and recreation 1,242,758 1,242,758 1,560,056 1,560,056 

Education 16,030,811 16,030,811 16,245,159 16,245,159 

Interest on debt 650,461 650,461 619,990 619,990 

Waste water treatment plant 2,175,804 2,175,804 2,085,365 2,085,365 

Total expenses 37,841,080 2,175,804 40,016,884 38,217,154 2,085,365 40,302,519 

Transfers 169,000 (169,000) 

Change in net assets 2,412,878 297,494 2,710,372 1,699,162 52,308 1,751,470 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $37,841,080. However, as shown in the Statement of 
Activities, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through City prope1ty taxes was 
only $30,931,696 because some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs 
($2,468,161), or by other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with operating grants 
and contributions ($729,168) and capital grants and contributions ($263,206). Overall, the City's governmental 
program revenues, including intergovernmental aid and fees for services, were $3,460,535. The City paid for the 
remaining "public benefit" portion of governmental activities with $36,793,423 in taxes and with other revenues, 
such as interest, State Revenue Sharing, general contributions and other miscellaneous revenues. 

The City's programs include General Government, Public Safety, Public Works, Housing Programs, Culture and 
Recreation, Education, and Interest on Debt. Each program's net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the 
activities) is presented below for both the curreut year (2012) and last year (2011) for comparative purposes. The 
net cost shows the financial burden tlmt was placed on the City's taxpayers by each of these functions. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

June 30, 2012 

Governmental activities: 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Housing Programs 
Culture and Recreation 
Education 
Interest on Debt 

Total govern1nental activities 

2012 Net (Expense) 

$ (6,744,801) 
(5,636,346) 
( 4,927 ,872) 

29,401 
(419,655) 

(16,030,811) 
(650,461) 

$ (34,380,545) 

2011 Net (Expense) 

$ (6,645,885) 
(5,998,515) 
(2,462,798) 

(21,286) 
(850,878) 

(16,245,159) 
(619,990) 

$ (32,844,511) 

Total resources available during the year to finance governmental operations were $81,679,382 consisting of net 
assets at July 1, 2011 of $41,425,424, program revenues of $3,460,532 and general revenues of $36,793,423. 
Total Governmental Activities during the yeru· were $37,841,080; thus, Net Assets increased by $2,412,878 to 
$43,838,303. 

2012 Governmental Activities Revenue 

El Property taxes 
IJHomestead exemption 
lll!nvestment earnings 

II Motor vehicle excise taxes 
a state revenue sharing 
BAii other revenue 

II Charges for services aoperating grants and contributions 
llCapital grants and contributions 

2012 Governmental Program Expenses 

42°/o 

II General Government 

a Housing Programs 

Ill Interest on Debt 

2'Yo 

1% 

Iii Public Safety 

II Culture and Recreation 

20°/o 

a Public Works 

ct Education 

17°/o 

~---------------------------~---------------· -----~ 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

June 30, 2012 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

The cost of all Proprietary (Business-type) activities this year was $2,175,804. As shown in the Statement of 
Activities, the amounts paid by users of the system were $2,621,156, and investments earnings were $21,142. 

The Proprietary Fund (Business-type) Activities include only the operation of the City's Waste Water Treatment 
Plant. The activities net revenues (total cost less revenues generated by the activities) is $445,352 as revenues 
were more than expenses. 

Total resources available during the year to finance Proprietary Fund (Business-type) Activities were $19,665,160 
consisting of Net Assets atJuly 1, 2011 of $17,022,862, program revenues of $2,621,156, and general revenues of 
$21,142. Total Proprietary Fund (Business-type) expenses during the year were $2,344,804 (including transfer); 
thus, Net Assets increased by $297,494 to $17,320,356. 

2012 Business-type Activities Revenue 

&Charges for services II Investment earnings DMiscel!aneous revenues 

This increase in net assets is due primarily to sewer user fees collected being higher than its projection for the 
year, as well as unresh·icted investment earnings coming in lower than projections. 

THE CITY'S FUNDS 

The following is an analysis of balances in the City's major individual funds. Comparative information is being 
provided for fiscal year 2011. 

General Major Governmental Functions - The information below compares revenues of the General Fund for 
2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Revenues by source: 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Other revenues 
Total revenues 

2012 2011 

$34,572,034 $32,219,898 
799,730 691,819 

2,147,471 2,016,722 
1,180,780 1,131,697 

294,321 484,332 
$38,994,336 $36,544,468 

In fiscal yeai· 2012, the City also had two other major funds. The Fire Barn North Street Bond ai1d the Saco 
Island TlF District. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discnssion and Analysis, Continued 

June 30, 2012 

2012 General Fund Revenues by Source 

II Property taxes II Licenses and permits C!ntergovernmental DCharges for services II Other revenues 

The information below compares expenditures of the General Fund for 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

2012 2011 
Expenditures by function: 

General government $2,354,338 $ 2,413,584 
Public safety 6,132,726 5,836,380 
Public works 4,425,191 4,411,669 
Culture and recreation 1,269,848 1,227,045 
Education 16,030,811 16,245, 159 
County tax 1,099,643 1,079,365 
Unclassified 3,712,033 3,528,732 
Debt service 2,419,597 2,319,954 
Capital improvements 999,594 1,233,861 

Total expenditures $38,443,781 $38,295,749 

2012 General Fund Expenditures by Function 

3°/o 

42o/o 

lllGeneral Government 

IJCu!ture and recreation 

II Unclassified · 

llPub!ic Safety 

Ill Education 

D Debt service 

301o 

Cl Public Works 

El County tax 

•Capital improvements 

In fiscal year 2012 and 2011, the Fire Barn North Street Bond had expenditures of $264,118 and $5,001,841, 
respectively. In fiscal year 2012 and 2011, the Saco Island TIF Fund had expenditures of $0 and $5,383, 
respective! y. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

June 30, 2012 

Proprietary Fund 

The City's only major Enterprise Fund consists of the Waste Water Treatment Plant. The basic financial 
statements for the major funds are included in this report. Because the focus on proprietary funds is a cost of 
service measurement or capital maintenance, we have included this fund in the table below, which demonstrates 
return on ending assets and return on ending net assets. 

Total Assets 
Net Assets 
Change in Net Assets 

Return on Ending Total Assets 
Return on Ending Net Assets 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

2012 
$22,243,071 

17,320,356 
297,494 

1.34% 
1.72% 

2011 
$22,248,591 

17,022,862 
52,308 

0.24% 
0.31% 

Debt, considered a liability of governmental activities, decreased in fiscal year 2012 by $5,130,116. Debt, 
considered a liability of business-type activities, decreased in fiscal year 2012 by $225,000. Per capita bonded 
debt and capital leases outstanding decreased from $1,228 to $962 per capita compared to the prior fiscal year. 
For a more detailed disclosure on debt, see footnote 7. 

The Governmental Activity and Business-type Activity debt summary for fiscal year 2012 is presented below. 

Debt Payable at June 30, 2011 
Add: New Debt and Capital Lease Purchases 

Less: Debt Retired 
Debt Payable at June 30, 2012 

Govcrnemntal 
Activities 

$ 21,510,023 
445,143 

21,955,166 
5,130,116 

$ 16,825,050 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 1,177,500 

1,177,500 
225,000 

$ 952,500 

This debt payable does not include the long-term portion of compensated absences of $1,224,016 for 
governmental activities and $70,582 for business-type activities (See Note 5). 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

The capital assets of the City are those assets, which are used in the performance of the City's functions including 
infrastructure assets. At June 30, 2012, net capital assets of the governmental activities totaled $55,269,771 and 
the net capital assets of the business-type activities totaled $21,678,115. Depreciation on capital assets is 
recognized in the Government-wide financial statements . 

. The City has elected to use the "Modified Approach" as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure 
reporting. Under GASE Statement No. 34, eligible infrastructure capital assets are not required to be depreciated 
under the following requirements: 

~ The City manages the eligible infrastructure capital assets using an asset management system 
with characteristics of (1) an up-to-date inventory; (2) perform condition assessments and 
summarize the results using a measurement scale; and (3) estimate annual amonnt to maintain and 
preserve at the established condition assessment level. 

~ The City documents that the eligible infrastructure capital assets are beiug preserved 
approximately at or above the established and disclosed condition assessment level. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discnssion and Analysis, Continued 

June 30, 2012 

The City's streets axe constantly deteriorating resulting from the following four factors: (I) traffic using the 
streets; (2) the sun's ultra-violet rays drying out and breaking down the top layer of pavement; (3) utility 
company/private development interests trenching operations; and (4) water damage from natural precipitation and 
other urban runoff. The City is continuously taking actions to airest the deterioration through short-term 
maintenance activities such as pothole patching, street sweeping, and sidewalk repair. 

The City expended $515,164 on street maintenance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. These expenditures 
defer pavement deterioration; however, the overall condition of the streets was not substantially changed through 
these maintenai1ce expenditures. The City has estinlated that the amount of annual expenditures required to 
maintain the City's streets at the minimum PCI rating of 70 rating (2 within City's Asset Management System, 
See Required Supplemental Information) is $950,000 through 2013. The current PCI rating for 2012 is 77, which 
is down one point from last year. 

The City is also continuously taking actions to arrest the deterioration of other infrastructure assets through short­
term maintenance activities. The City expended $99,048 on other infrastructure maintenance for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2012. These expenditures delayed deterioration and improved the overall condition through these 
maintenance expenditures. The City had estinlated that the amount of annual expenditures required to maintain 
the City's infrastructure at the minimum rating of 2 through the year 2013 was a minimum of $500,000. 

Infrastructure Assets - June 30, 2012 and 2011 

Description 
Governmental Activities: 
Modified Approach: 

Catch basins and manholes 
Storm drainage 
Sidewalks 
Street Pavement System 
Traffic signals 
Street signs 
Land 

Total Governn1ental Activities 

Business~typc Activities: 
Sewer pipe 

Total Business-type Activities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

24 

Net 
Cost2012 

2,302,711 $ 
17,998,406 
1,798,331 

13,426,915 
851,455 
44,818 

5,328,042 
41,750,678 $ 

14,918,272 
14,918,272 $ 

Net 
Cost 2011 

2,302,711 
17,998,406 
1,676,434 

13,033,779 
851,455 
44,818 

5,328,042 
41,235,645 

14,918,272 
14,918,272 



CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

June 30, 2012 

Capital Assets 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012 

Governmental Activities: 
Buildings and lmprove1nents $ 17,804,590 $ 264,117 $ $ 18,068,707 
Vehicles 5,010,596 245,788 (110,553) 5,145,831 
Machinery and Equipment 4,391,304 442,075 (118,685) 4,714,694 
Total 27,206,490 951,980 (229,238) 27,929,232 

Accumulated Depreciation (13,697 ,487) (941,890) 229,238 (14,410,139) 

Total Governmental Activities $ 13,509,003 $ 10,090 $ $ 13,519,093 

Business-type Activities: 
Buildings and Improvements 9,083,468 162,353 9,245,821 
Vehicles 95,094 45,033 140,127 
Machinery and Equipment 1,626,590 4,003 1,630,593 
Total 10,805,152 211,389 11,016,541 

Accumulated Depreciation (3,968,193) (288,505) (4,256,698) 

Total Business-type Activities $ 6,836,959 $ (77,116) $ 6,759,843 

Total Capital and Infrastructure $ 76,499,879 $ 76,947,886 

For more detail on capital assets, see footnote 4. 

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

General Fund Budget Variances 

Comparing the fiscal year 2011-2012 original budget (or adopted) General Fund amount of $39,518,688, 
(expenditures of $38,733,547, plus transfers of $785,141), to the final budget amount of 40,434,249 shows a 
change of $915,561 from the original budget. 

Original Budget 
39,518,688 

Beginning Balance 
40,105,213 

+ Continuing Appropriations 
586,525 

+/- Supplemental Changes 
329,036 

= Beginning Balance 
40,105,213 

= Final Budget 
40,434,249 

For budgetary financial statement purposes, the $586,525 is prior fiscal year Capital Improvement Projects 
approved to carry forward into the 2011-2012 fiscal year. The $329,036 reflects a budget adjustment to include 
prior year encumbrance amounts. This resulted in an overall budgetary increase of $915,561. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The Annual Budget assures the efficient, effective and economic uses of City's resources, as well as, establishing 
that the highest priority objectives are accomplished. Through the budget, the City Council sets the direction of 
the City, allocates its resources and establishes its priorities. 
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Management's Discnssion and Analysis, Continned 
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Historical Trend 

As the City enters fiscal year 2013, we have gone above our unassigned fond balance policy. The City's 
philosophy is during hard times like this recession that we nse our savings to help reduce the tax basis for our 
citizens. 

In reflecting back on the history of the City's past five budgets, non-tax revenues have remained steadily at 
approximately $10 million annually. During this time span, the City has been able to stabilize the tax rate with 
consistent increases in property valuations. Fiscal year 2012 is the first tax increase iu four years. 

Total taxes 
Percent change 
Total City valuation 

The Budget 

2009 
$ 27 ,530,902 

3.6% 
$2,051,483,000 

2010 
$ 28,197,854 

2.4% 
$2,070,327,000 

2011 
$ 29,041,768 

1.4% 
$2,101,430,400 

2012 
$ 30,518,554 

5.2% 
$2,116,404,600 

2013 
$36,032,877 

17.9% 
$1,968,257,265 

It is important to note that the City of Saco's Adopted Budget for fiscal year 2013 encompasses all municipal 
expenditures, as well as County and Regional School Unit #23 tax assessments. The City budget only reflects the 
tax assessment in budgeted expenditures. All other school-related revenues and expenditures were approved via 
referendum vote and are reflected iu the separately issued RSU #23 financial statements. Thus, the fiscal 2013 
adopted budget calls for total expenditures of $44,390,608, representing $23,702,094 iu municipal expenditures, 
$1,100,295 in county tax, and $19,588,219 in taxes raised on behalf of the RSU. 

The original budget requests from the twelve individual departments were based on the department head's 
perceived needs. The following adjustments were made after a careful review by the City Administrator and then 
the City Council: 

City Administrator Net Approved 
City Budget Recommendation Change Budget 
Operating Budget $ 21,282,094 $ (638,000) $ 20,644,094 
Ca2ital Outlay 2,119,000 (619,000) 1,500,000 
Total 23,401,094 (1,257,000) 22,144,094 
Overla:r & TIF Transfers 1,558,000 1,558,000 
Total Expenditure Budget $ 24,959,094 $ (1,257,000) $ 23,702,094 

RSUBoard Net Approved 
RSV (School) Budget Recommendation Change Budget 
Education $ 19,588,219 $ - $ 19,588,219 

Estimated Net Actual 
County Tax County Tax Change County Tax 
County Tax $ 1,100,295 $ $ 1,100,295 

TOTAL BUDGET $ 45,647,608 $ (l,257,000) $ 44,390,608 
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The following chait compares the major categories in the operational budget and their respective increases over 
the last five years, without the overlay and TIF transfer. 

Appropriation Summary 

Departments 
Legislative 
City Administration 
Financeffechnology 
City Clerk 
Assessor 
Building Maintenance 
Legal 
Police Dcpartinent 
Fire/ Ambulance 
Building Inspections/Zouing 
Planning & Economic Dev. 
Public Works 
Public Agencies 
Emergency Managen1ent 
Parks & Recreation 
Debt Service 
Employee Benefits 
Insurances 
Contingency 
Education K-12 
York County Tax 
Capital Improvement Projects 
Overlay 
T!F Transfers 

TOTAL 

Revenues/Surplus 

$ 

2009 
Actual 

17,041 $ 
268,785 
707,864 
245,116 
164,131 
114,638 
203,838 

3,108,630 
2,309,264 

246,835 
302,663 

4,589,463 
521,868 

6,527 
1,071,275 
2,695,555 
2,463,817 

180,352 
111,513 

26,149,449 
1,020,912 

775,107 

681,373 

2010 

Actual 
20,325 $ 

271,789 
687,765 
243,802 
165,377 

96,577 
176,417 

3,122,770 
2,593,432 

227,437 
264,515 

4,188,175 
556,237 

5,833 
1,105,116 
1,815,443 
2,435,885 

165,879 
102,096 

16,228,121 
1,020,912 

24,516 

731,968 

2011 
Actual 

20,600 $ 
275,686 
753,337 
256,934 
183,521 
112,190 
115,000 

3,304,724 
2,635,584 

254,702 
310,168 

4,503,559 
572,800 

5,900 
1,014,083 
2,479,481 
2,746,416 

179,425 
145,547 

16,228,121 

1,079,365 
165,000 
500,000 
743,115 

2012 

Budget 
20,600 $ 

284, 158 
818,193 
264,690 
194,782 
112,033 
185,000 

3,440,717 
2,726,545 

207,581 
309,995 

4,616,892 
630,421 

5,900 
1,144,804 
2,390,941 
2,829,212 

159,012 
137,971 

16,030,811 
1,079,365 

859,485 
1,200,000 

785,141 

$ 47,956,016 $ 36,250,387 $ 38,585,258 $ 40,434,249 $ 

2013 

Budget 
20,325 

292,273 
821,523 
284,584 
187,503 
117,174 
182,500 

3,332,730 
2,777,318 

212,671 
314,637 

4,672,673 
698,300 

5,820 
1,244,217 
2,232,515 
2,947,169 

166,963 
133,200 

19,588,219 
1,100,294 
1,500,000 

755,000 
803,000 

44,390,608 

The amount budgeted for revenues shows a sharp decrease in fiscal 2010 due to the Saco School Depaitment non­
tax revenues being excluded from this calculation. Educational non-tax revenues are recognized by Regional 
School Unit #23, and are audited sepai·ately as part of RSU #23's financial statements. RSU #23 merged the 
following school depmtments: Dayton, Saco, and Old Orchai·d Beach. It is worth noting that there has been a 
great deal of fluctuation in non-tax revenue over the past 5 yeai·s. A high of 10.85% was noted in 2007, and a 
decrease is reflected in the fiscal 2010 on the municipal budget as a result of the current economic recession. City 
management and the City Council ai·e diligent in ensuring that the budget and forecasts ai·e cognizai1t of the 
impact on the budgeted utilization of prior year unassigned fund balance. In the current year, we have estimated 
revenue with slight decrease due to valuations. 

Non-tax revenues 
Percent change 

2009 2010 
$ 21,132,025 $ 9,265,125 

6.70% -56.16% 
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2011 
$ 9,588,286 

3.49% 

2012 
$ 8,966,433 

-6.48% 

2013 
$9,322,259 

3.97% 
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There were no significant increases in the municipal operational budget. The RSU slatted issuing separate 
financial statements for the fiscal year ending Jnne 30, 2010 as they began operations on July 1, 2009. It is 
important to note that starting fiscal 2010 reflected reduced revenue estimates based on forecasts ou decreasing 
State revenne shming, declining excise revenues and a decrease in other intergovernmental revenue. The City 
remains diligent about tracking fuud balance to ensure we remain in compliauce with the Council's adopted fiscal 
policies; however, as noted prior, the City has gone below the policy due to reducing the tax burden on citizens 
during hard times. 

Savings/Increased Demands 

The City's department head's are always looking for ways to save the City money, whether through increased 
efficiencies or t!u·ough the attainment of federal and state grants. The City is participating in a number of 
activities related to increased efficiencies between various City departments as well as with other communities in 
our southern Maine area. Many departments are meeting regulmly with their counter paits in other communities 
to explore the possibilities of combining resources to deliver services. 

The fiscal year 2012 budget also includes revenue mnounts for specific state and federal grants that have been 
applied for. There are also several other grai1t awards that will surface during the course of the fiscal year that 
were not known at the time of the budget process. These awards will be brought to the City Council for 
consideration upon being awarded and additional funding will be requested at that time, to fund ai1y local match 
requirements above that original! y budgeted. 

The Future 

In terms of the future, we are in good finai1cial shape at this time. However, we need to be alert to the public 
benefit versus the costs of the services we provide. In short, as the budget better reflects actual revenues, and as 
we move into the future, we need to be careful of our spending so that we do not find ourselves in the position of 
expenditures outpacing revenues. 

What is at stake for the City of Saco officials can be summed up in one word: effectiveness. Major challenges ai·e 
facing us as we enter this new year with infrastrncture and capital maintenance needs being reduced to enable the 
funding of operational needs of the City. Officials need to be cognizant of the need to preserve the City's most 
valuable assets as large deterioration can very often increase the amount ultimately spent in order to bring them 
back to acceptable and safe condition levels. A small portion of these road maintenance needs were addressed 
with the November 2006 roads bond. A similai· bond package was put forth to the voters in November 2009 ai1d 
passed. During fiscal year 2011, we have been busy working on roads with the Road Bond that passed. 

To that end, it is especially important that the City Council maintain and update regularly its comprehensive plai1, 
goals and strategic plan, based upon guidance from appointed and elected officials as well as significai1t citizen 
involvement. These processes are already in place and underway with the mailing of citizen customer service 
questiomrnires and web site request and recorrunendation forms accessible 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and the 
random independent phone "Citizen Satisfaction Survey." By putting citizens and local government officials into 
the decision-making loop, the City will be shifting to a more open and inclusive process of governance. 

The City is pursuing performance measurement type initiatives and continues to review policies and procedures to 
assure their compliance ai1d alignment with the City's completed Strategic Plan (March 2004) and updated 
(February 2006, December 2008, September 2010). 
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The City was successful at attaining a grant through the Center for Civic funovation in order to further this effort 
and completed its first Citizen Satisfaction Survey in November of 2004 and a second Snrvey in October of 2005, 
as well as publish the first ever City Pe1formance Measurement Report in January of 2005, a second Performance 
Measurement Report in January of 2006, and a third in December of 2006 as a result of this grant award. It will 
be eminent for the City to review and update its strategic plan in the coming years. The Citizen Centric reporting 
costs were incorporated into the fiscal 2011 budget. These initiatives are important for the City's continued 
efficient growth into the future. At the end of fiscal year 2011, we received another grant from the City for Civic 
funovation to complete the citizen survey. The citizen survey is in the process of being completed in early fiscal 
year2012. 

The City was the first commnnity in the country to issue a citizen centric prototype report in order to more 
efficiently communicate City finances and performance in a concise 4-page report which is aimed to stimulate 
them to want to learn more. The City was also successful at obtaining a second grant through the National Center 
for Civic Innovation in order to conduct the independent citizen satisfaction survey again in fiscal 2010. 

The recently completed seventh annual report of performance information displays the operational efficiencies 
and effectiveness of onr operations here at the City of Saco. The City's first seven submittals were successful at 
achieving the Association of Governmental Accountants Certificate of Excellence in Service Efforts and 
Accomplishments Reporting. These processes all involve reviewing processes and measuring results achieved by 
the municipality in the area of customer service delivery and presentation. It also involves a close look at all 
procedures to assure that efficiencies are being maximized. Whether it means changing a specific procedure to 
lessen expenditures realized or examining new sources of non-tax revenues, the City needs to be pro-active in its 
response. Certainly, whatever we can do to keep up with changing trends and emerging issues will help to 
improve the future fortunes of our citizens. Successful activities involving a collaborative effort between 
municipalities need to be reviewed as a potential solution to some of the budget challenges facing us and other 
municipalities. 

This executive summary would not be complete without the mention of tl1e 2006 enacted "Public Law 1 Tax 
Reform." This legislation was enacted within the State of Maine and the City was in compliance with this 
legislation for the passing of the 2013 budget. This levy limitation is calculated based on two factors; one is 
certified by the State and is a state-wide personal income growth factor and the second is a local factor of the last 
known new growth percentage within each commnnity. These two percentages are added together to arrive at the 
levy limitation percentage for each community across the State of Maine. The property tax levy in total cannot 
increase by more than this amount without special disclosures made by the City Council and special motions 
made in order to approve the budget noting why the budget is exceeding the levy limitation. The fiscal year 2013 
approved budget for the City of Saco has an increase of $2.60, which is $0.90 City and $1.70 School. Fiscal year 
2013, the City had to pass a disclosure noting that we had exceeded the "Public Law 1 Tax Reform". In fiscal 
yeal" 2013, the City also had a valuation change. The value change reduced the values by approximately 7%, that 
adjusted the City's rate by $1.28. 

FY2012 Rate 
City (6.2% increase) 
School (11.8% increase) 
Valuation change 
FY2013 Rate 

$14.42 
.90 

1.70 
1.28 

$18.30 

29 



Summaiy 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued 

June 30, 2012 

With the fiscal year 2013 adopted budget, there is a 17.9% iucrease to the existing tax rate. This means that 
property owners will be billed an estimated $18.30 per thousand in fiscal year 2013. In other words, a property 
valued at $200,000 will pay $3,660 in property taxes annually. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial rep01t is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have any questions about this rep01t or need any additional financial information, please contact the Finance 
Director: by mail at 300 Main Street, Saco, Maine, 04072; by phone at 207-282-1032; or via e-mail at 
cheryl.fournier@sacomaine.org. 
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Statement 1 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Statement of Net Assets 

June 30, 2012 

Governme11tal Business~type 2012 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,279,695 $ $ 1,279,695 
Investments 1,848,122 1,848,122 
Receivables: 

Accounts (net of allowance of $35,414) 1,390,200 564,956 1,955,156 
Taxes - current 832,626 832,626 
Taxes - prior years 113,770 113,770 
Tax liens 424,321 424,321 
Notes (net of allowance of $7,142) 7,144 7,144 

Prepaid expenses 124,024 124,024 

Other 38,311 38,311 
Tax acquired property 58,359 58,359 
Depreciable capital assets, net 13,519,093 6,759,843 20,278,936 
Non-depreciable capital assets 41,750,678 14,918,272 56,668,950 

Total assets 61,386,343 22,243,071 83,629,414 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 918,541 109,494 1,028,035 
Accrued liabilities 209,491 78,867 288,358 
Taxes collected in advance 78,491 78,491 
Tax Anticipation Note Payable 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Internal balance (3,781,854) 3,781,854 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 1,728,103 222,500 1,950,603 
Due in more than one year 16,895,268 730,000 17,625,268 

Total liabilities 17,548,040 4,922,715 22,470,755 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 38,950,978 20,725,615 59,676,593 
Restricted for: 

Special revenue programs and grants 2,120,219 2,120,219 
Capital projects 573,120 573,120 
Permanent funds: 

Nonexpendable 181,383 181,383 
Expendable 374,203 374,203 

Unres1Ticted 1,638,400 (3,405,259) (1,766,859) 
Total net assets $ 43,838,303 $ 17,320,356 $ 61,158,659 

See acco1npanying notes to basic financial statenients. 
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Statement2 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes 
Pro~ram Revenues in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Primary Government 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type 2012 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Primary gove1nment 
Gove111mental activities: 

General government $ 7,681,100 $ 578,170 $ 358,129 $ $ (6,744,801) $ $ (6,744,801) 
Public safety 6,424,834 787,138 1,350 (5,636,346) (5,636,346) 
Public works 5,579,364 289,297 98,989 263,206 (4,927,872) (4,927,872) 
Housing programs 231,752 261,153 29,401 29,401 
Culture and recreation 1,242,758 813,556 9,547 (419,655) (419,655) 
Education 16,030,811 (16,030,811) (16,030,811) 
Interest on debt 650,461 (650,461) (650,461) 

_________ Total governmental activities 37,841,080 2,468,161 729,168 263,206 (34,380,545) (34,380,545) 

Business-type activities: 
Waste Water Treatment Plant 2,175,804 2,621,156 445,352 445,352 

Total business-type activities 2,175,804 2,621,156 445,352 445,352 

Total primary government $ 40,016,884 $ 5,089,317 $ 729,168 $ 263,206 $ (34,380,545) $ 445,352 $ (33,935,193) 

General revenues: 
Prope1ty taxes, levied for general purposes $ 30,931,696 $ $ 30,931,696 
Motor vehicle excise taxes 3,446,591 3,446,591 

Franchise tax 286,882 286,882 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs: 
Homestead exemption 286,309 286,309 

Other State aid 199,285 199,285 

State Revenue Sharing 1,256,887 1,256,887 

Unrestricted investment earnings 56,337 56,337 
Miscellaneous revenues 160,436 21,142 181,578 

Transfer 169,000 (169,000) 
Total £eneral revenues and transfer 36,793,423 (147,858) 36,645,565 

Change in net assets 2,412,878 297,494 2,710,372 

Net assets - beginning 41,425,424 17,022,862 58,448,286 

Net assets - ending $ 43,838,303 $ 17,320,356 $ 61,158,659 

See acco1npanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net of allowance of $35,414 
Intetfund receivables 
Notes receivable, net of allowance $7, 142 
Taxes and liens receivable 
Tax acquired property 
Prepaid ite1ns 
Other 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Acc1ued liabilities 
Taxes collected in advance 
Interfund payables 
Tax anticipation note 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances (deficits) 

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) 

CITY m' SACO, MAINE 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2012 

$ 

$ 

$ 

General 
Fund 

842,103 
436,281 
410,320 

6,508,222 

1,370,717 
58,359 

124,024 

9,750,026 

868,648 
208,791 
78,491 

1,501,041 
1,500,000 
1,065,676 
5,222,647 

124,024 

69,206 
662,668 

3,671,481 
4,527,379 

9,750,026 

Fire Barn 
North Street 

Bond 

$ 

286,897 

$ 286,897 

286,897 

286,897 

$ 286,897 

Amounts repo1ted for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (Statement 1) are different because: 

Statement3 

Saco Island Other 2012 Total 
TIF Governmental Governmental 

District Funds Funds 

$ $ 437,592 $ 1,279,695 
1,411,841 1,848,122 

979,880 1,390,200 
1,214,143 8,009,262 

7,144 7,144 
1,370,717 

58,359 
124,024 

38,311 38,311 
$ $ 4,088,911 $ 14,125,834 

49,893 918,541 
700 209,491 

78,491 
1,370,039 1,356,328 4,227,408 

1,500,000 
1,065,676 

1,370,039 1,406,921 7,999,607 

188,527 312,551 
2,773,501 3,060,398 

133,847 203,053 
849,382 1,512,050 

(1,370,039) (1,263,267) 1,038,175 
(1,370,039) 2,681,990 6,126,227 

$ 4,088,911 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 
More specifically, non-depreciable & depreciable capital assets as reported on Statement 1 $ 55,269,771 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the cutTent period and therefore are not rcpo1ted 
in the funds. (18,623,371) 
Noncurrent liabilities as reported on State1nent 1 (17,399,355) 
Accrued liabilities (co1npensated absences) as reported on State1nent 1 (1,224,016) 

(18,623,371) 

DefetTed revenues- more sr~ecifically, deferred J?:roeerty taxes not reJ?:orted on Staten1ent 1 1,065,676 

Net assets of governmental activities $ 43,838,303 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 
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State1nent 4 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
For tlte Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Fire Barn Saco Island Other 2012 Total 
General North Street TIF Governmental Governmental 

Fund Bond District Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 34,572,034 $ $ $ $ 34,572,034 
Licenses and pennits 799,730 799,730 
Intergovernmental 2,147,471 322,661 2,470,132 
Charges for services 1,180,780 706,320 1,887,100 
Other revenues 294,321 255,388 549,709 

Total revenues 38,994,336 1,284,369 40,278,705 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 2,354,338 2,354,338 
Public safety 6,132,726 264,118 6,396,844 
Public works 4,425,191 4,425,191 
Housing programs 231,752 231,752 
Culture and recreation 1,269,848 1,269,848 
Education 16,030,811 16,030,811 
Unclassified 3,712,033 302,223 4,014,256 

Intergovernmental: 
County tax 1,099,643 1,099,643 

Debt service: 
Principal 1,769,136 1,769,136 
Interest and other charges 650,461 650,461 

CaEital imErove1nents 999,594 784,206 1,783,800 
Total exEenditures 38,443,781 264,118 1,318,181 40,026,080 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) exEenditurcs 550,555 (264,118) (33,812) 252,625 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Capital lease issuance of debt 445,142 445,142 
Transfers in 956,000 428,764 1,225,934 2,610,698 
Transfers out (889,280) (25,000) (1,527,418) (2,441,698) 

Total other financin(T sources (uses) 511,862 403,764 (301,484) 614,142 

Net change in fund balances 1,062,417 (264,118) 403,764 (335,296) 866,767 

Fund balances (deficits)-beginning 3,464,962 551,015 (1,773,803) 3,017,286 5,259,460 

Fund balances (deficits)-ending $ 4,527,379 $ 286,897 $ (1,370,039) $ 2,681,990 $ 6,126,227 

See acco1npanying notes to basic financial state1nents. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

For the year ended June 30, 2012 

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds (from Statement 4) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities (Statement 2) are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets 
is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation 
expense, with the exception of infrastructure which is recorded 
at historical cost and not depreciated as the Modified Approach is 
being used. More specifically, this is the amount by which capital outlays 
exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

Capital outlays $ 
Less: net depreciation 
To reconciliation $ 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide 
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in 
the funds. More specifically, this amount represents the change in 
defelTed property taxes. 

The City has bonds that were originally issued for School purposes. 
These amounts will be funded by Regional School Unit #23 when the 
debt service payments are due. 1'he City has recorded a long-term 
receivable for the amount that will be paid by the School Unit for 
these bonds. The amount of the receivable at year end was 
$0 with principal amounts paid off during the year totaling $3,360,979. 

Bond and capital lease proceeds provide current financial resources to 
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term 
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of bond and 
capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, 
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net 
assets. More specifically, this represents the net amount of principal 
increases (decreases) in debt service made during the year. 

1,467,013 
941,890 
525,123 

Capital lease proceeds 
Capital lease repayments 
Bond principal repayments 

$ (445,143) 

Net debt service 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current pe1iod and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. More specifically, this represents: 

448,071 
4,682,045 

$ 4,684,973 

Change in long term accrued compensated absences $ 28,884 
(138,143) Change in long term other post employment benefits 

Change in net assets of governmental activities (see Statement 2) 

Statements 

$ 866,767 

525,123 

(193,747) 

(3,360,979) 

4,684,973 

(109,259) 

$ 2,412,878 

See acco111panying notes to basic financial state111ents. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
General Fund 

Staten1ent 6 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance R Budget and Actual 
For the year ended June 30, 2012 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Interest earnings 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Education 
County tax 
Unclassified 

Debt service 
Capital projects 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Budgeted utilization of surplus 
Carryover of Assigned Fund Balance 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources and uses 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance - be innincr 

Fund balance R ending 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Variance 'vith 
Final BudgetR 

Original Final Actual Amounts Positive (Negative) 

33,559,755 
704,800 

1,955,131 
1,092,300 

30,000 
566,983 

37,908,969 

2,312,900 
6,049,636 
4,605,122 
1,142,905 

16,030,811 
1,079,365 
4,956,867 
2,390,941 

165,000 
38,733,547 

(824,578) 

822,719 

787,000 
(785,141) 
824,578 

38 

$ 33,630,540 $ 
704,800 

1,955,131 
1,092,300 

30,000 
566,983 

37,979,754 

2,397,032 
6,167,262 
4,616,892 
1,144,804 

16,030,811 
1,079,365 
4,962,516 
2,390,941 

859,485 
39,649,108 

(1,669,354) 

822,719 
675,776 
956,000 

(785,141) 
1,669,354 

$ 

34,572,034 $ 
799,730 

2,147,471 
1,180,780 

7,111 
287,210 

38,994,336 

2,354,338 
6,132,726 
4,425,191 
1,269,848 

16,030,811 
1,099,643 
3,712,033 
2,419,597 

554,452 
37,998,639 

995,697 

956,000 
(889,280) 

66,720 

1,062,417 

3,464,962 

4,527,379 

941,494 
94,930 

192,340 
88,480 

(22,889) 
(279,773) 

1,014,582 

42,694 
34,536 

191,701 
(125,044) 

(20,278) 
1,250,483 

(28,656) 
305,033 

1,650,469 

2,665,051 

(822,719) 
(675,776) 

(104,139) 
(1,602,634) 

1,062,417 

See acco1npanying notes to basic financial statements. 



ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Receivables 

NoncrnTent assets: 
Depreciable capital assets 

Vehicles 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Fund 
June 30, 2012 

Total current assets 

Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Non-depreciable capital assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Interfund payables 

Total noncu1Tent assets 
Total assets 

Bonds payable due within one year 
Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Bonds payable due in more than one year 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt 
Um·estricted 

Total net assets 

$ 

$ 

Statement7 

Business~type activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Waste Water 
Treatment Plant 

564,956 
564,956 

140,127 
9,245,821 
1,630,593 

( 4,256,698) 
14,918,272 
21,678,115 
22,243,071 

109,494 
78,867 

3,781,854 
222,500 

4,192,715 

730,000 
730,000 

4,922,715 

20,725,615 
(3,405,259) 

17,320,356 

See acconipanying notes to basic financial statenients. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

Proprietary Fund 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous revenues 

For the year ended June 30, 2012 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Personnel services 
Contractual services 
Utilities 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other supplies and expenses 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating inco1ne 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Transfer ont 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets - beginning 

Total net assets - ending 

Statements 

Business~type activities 
Enterprise Funds 

$ 

$ 

Waste Water 
Treatment Plant 

2,621,156 
21,142 

2,642,298 

817,154 
266,283 
161,450 
46,516 

559,686 
288,505 

2,139,594 

502,704 

(169,000) 
(36,210) 

(205,210) 

297,494 

17,022,862 

17,320,356 

See acconi11anying notes to basic financial statenients. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 
For the year ended June 30, 2012 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIBS 
Receipts from customers 
Other receipts (payments) 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIBS 
Transfer to General Fund 
Increase (decrease) in interfund loans 

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIBS 
Capital asset purchases 
Principal paid on debt 
Interest paid on debt 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIBS 
Interest on investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increse (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Balances- beginning of the year 

Balances- end of the year 

Reconciliation of operating inco1ne to net cash provided 
(used) by operating activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 

Change in assets and liabilities: 
Receivables 
Accounts payables 
Accrued liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Statement 9 

Business-type activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Waste Water 
Treatment Plant 

2,549,559 
21,142 

(1,343,149) 
(835,351) 
392,201 

(169,000) 
249,396 

80,396 

(211,388) 
(225,000) 

(36,210) 
(472,598) 

502,704 

288,505 

(71,597) 
(309,214) 
(18,197) 

392,201 

See acconipanying notes to basic financial statenients. 

41 



CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. The Reporting Entity 

The City of Saco, Maine was incorporated in 1867 under the laws of the State of Maine. The City 
operates under a Mayor-Council and City Administrator form of government and provides the following 
services: general governmental services, public safety, public works (highways, streets and sewers), 
health, sanitation and welfare, culture and recreation, planning and zoning and public improvements. The 
Council is made up of seven members elected by registered voters. 

The criteria used to determine which accounting entities, agencies, commissions, boaxds and authorities 
me part of the City's operations include how the budget is adopted, whether debt is secured by general 
obligation of the City, the City's duty to cover any deficits that may occur, and supervision over the 
accounting functions. There are no agencies, organizations or activities meeting any of the above criteria 
that are excluded from the City reporting entity. 

The accounting policies of the City of Saco conform to accom1ting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more 
significant of such policies. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate 
accountiug entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as 
appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon 
the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 

C. Basis of Accounting/MeasUTement Focus 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City, the primary 
government, as a whole. These statements distinguish between activities that are governmental and those 
that are considered business-type activities. 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in the preparatiou of the proprietary fund 
financial statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are 
prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief 
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the 
statements for governmental funds. 

The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. The City has elected not to allocate indirect costs among 
the programs, functions and segments. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, nse, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and cont1ibutions, including special 
assessments. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported as 
general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each 
program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Note 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 

Net assets should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally 
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net 
assets restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their net asset 
use. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fnnd financial statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of governmental and 
enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major 
fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single 
colnmn. The major funds of the City are the General Fund, the Fire Barn Nmih Street Bond Fund and the 
Saco Island TIF Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax 
revenues and othei· receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are 
accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid the general operating expenses, the fixed charges and 
the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds. The Fire Barn North Street Bond 
Fund accounts for bond proceeds and expenditures related to the City's construction of a fire station. The 
Saco Island TIF Fund accounts for property taxes received from this tax increment financing district and 
the capital improvements made within the same. 

The City reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The Waste Water Treatment Plant accounts for the costs of construction and operation of the 
treatment plant, and is self-supported through sewer user fees. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

All governmental funds are accounted for using modified accrual basis of accounting and the current 
financial resonrces measurement focus. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting 
period in which they become measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting 
period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable. 

Revenue Recognition 

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue 
sources are deemed both measurable and available (i.e., collectible within the current year or within 60 
days of year-end and available to pay obligations of the current period). This includes investment 
earnings, income taxes withheld by employers, estate taxes, fines and forfeitures and state motor vehicle 
excise taxes. Reimbursements due for federally funded projects are accrued as revenue at the time the 
expenditures are made, or when received in advance, deferred until expenditures are made. 

Property taxes, though measurable, are not available soon enough in the subsequent year to finance 
current period obligations. Therefore, prope1ty tax receivables are recorded and deferred until they 
become available. Other revenues, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services, income 
taxes other than those withheld by employers and miscellaneous revenues, are recorded as revenue when 
received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Note 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIBS, Continued 

Expenditure Recognition 

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources 
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on long-term debt as well as expenditures 
related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are only recorded when payment is 
due. Allocation of costs, such as depreciation, is not recognized in the governmental funds. 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrnal basis of accounting. These funds account for 
operations that are primarily financed by user chaxges. The economic resource measurement focus 
concerns determining costs as a means of maintaining the capital investment and management control. 
Their revenues are recognized when they are earned and their expenses are recognized when they are 
incurred. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are recorded in proprietary funds. Proprietary fund 
types have selected to consistently not follow Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements 
issued subsequent to November 30, 1989 as permitted under Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 20. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietaiy fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal 
operating revenues of the City's proprietary fund are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are rep01ted as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 

D. Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contrncts and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve tliat portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed as ai1 extension of formal budgetary integration. Encumbrances outstanding at yeai·-end are 
reported as assigned fund balances within the fund financial statements, since they do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities and are added to the subsequent yeai·'s adopted appropriations. 

E. Cash and Investments 

The City's cash and cash equivalents ai·e considered to be cash on hand, demai1d deposits and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. City policy is 
that deposits can only be made in finai1cial institutions insured by the FDIC. The City's investment 
policy authorizes investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, repurchase 
agreements, certain corporate bonds, ce1tain ce1tificates of deposit and certain money market funds. The 
City invests its funds in an effort to ensure preservation of capital, remain sufficiently liquid and attain a 
reasonable market rate of return, while remaining within the guidelines as provided by the City's 
Investment Policy. 

Investments are reported at faii· value except for money market investments that have a remammg 
maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are stated at amortized cost. Income earned from the 
investments of pooled cash is allocated to the various funds on the basis of the average cash balance 
allocated to each fund. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Note 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considered all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

G. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect ce1tain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

H. Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2012 are recorded as 
prepaid items. 

I. Capital Assets 

The City's assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost. City policy has set the 
capitalization tlueshold for reporting capital assets at $8,000. The City has chosen the Modified 
Approach for reporting the infrastructure assets of the City. Gifts or contributions of capital assets are 
recorded at fair market value when received. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the 
useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Buildings 40 years 
Building improvements 40 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Office furniture and fixtures 7 years 
Equipment 10-20 years 
Computer equipment 3 years 

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets 
include the street system; water purification and distribution system; sewer collection and treatment 
system; park and recreation lands and improvement system; storm water conveyance system; and 
buildings site amenities such as parking used by the City in the conduct of its business. Each major 
infrastructure system can be divided into subsystems. For example, the street system can be divided into 
concrete and asphalt pavements, concrete curbing, sidewalks, streetlights, traffic control devices (signs, 
signals and pavement markings), landscaping and land. Subsystem detail is not presented in these basic 
financial statements; however, the City maintains detailed information on these subsystems. 

The City elected to use the Modified Approach as defined by Statement No. 34 for infrastructure 
reporting. Originally the City commissioned a physical assessment of all infrastructure conditions in 
2000 (fiscal year 2001). Subsequent to the initial assessment, City staff has performed condition 
assessments based on a combination of physical inspections and statistical modeling. The roads have 
been rated by using a program developed by the Maine Department of Transportation (RSMS) from 2001 
through 2009. The City has changed the condition assessment software in FY2010 to the Micropaver 
program developed by the Army Corp of Engineers. The advantage of this program is that it does 
statistical deterioration modeling that allows us to inspect a third of the roads each year. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Jone 30, 2012 

Note 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 

Pavement Condition Summary 
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The Micropaver program assesses the inspection criteria and develops a condition rating or Pavement 
Condition Index (PCI). The PCI index rates the roads between 0 and 100 with 100 being a new road. 

For the underground utilities, the City has jointly purchased a camera and truck with two neighboring 
municipalities to inspect the storm and sanitary collection systems. In fiscal year 2010, the Public Works 
Department inspected approximately 50,000 feet of sewer line. 

In 2001, 2004 and again iu 2007, the City subcontracted with an independent engineering firm to 
inventory and perform a condition assessment on all other City infrastructure assets. These other 
infrastructure assets, sewer pipe, catch basins and manholes, storm drainage, sidewalks, traffic lights and 
signage, were then combined with the streets on the City's Asset Management System. Per the rating 
system noted above, each infrastructure asset was assigned a condition assessment based on a visual 
inspection conducted on each asset. 

The City's policy relative to maintaining other infrastructure assets is to achieve a minimum rating of 2 
for all other infrastructure assets. (See Required Supplementary Information on page 68 for a description 
of the ratings.) 

For all other capital assets; buildings, vehicles, equipment reporting, the City elects to use the Basic 
Approach, as defined by Statement No. 34. The City conducted an inventory of all other capital assets for 
fiscal year 2000 and performs updates annually. 

This original and updated process determined the original cost, which is defined as the actual cost to 
acquire new prope1ty in accordance with market prices at the time of first construction or acquisition. 
Original costs were developed in one of three ways: 1) historical records; 2) standard unit costs 
appropriate for the construction/acquisition date; or 3) present cost indexed by a reciprocal factor of the 
price increase from the construction/acquisition date to the current date. The accumulated depreciation, 
defined as the total depreciation from the date of construction/acquisition to the current date on a straight 
line, unrecovered cost method was computed using industry accepted life expectancies for each capital 
asset. The book value was then computed by deducting the accumulated depreciation from the original 
cost. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Jnne 30, 2012 

Note 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continned 

J. Compensated Absences 

Under te1ms of personnel policies and nnion contracts, vacation and sick leave are granted in varying 
amounts according to length of service. Employees are paid for allowable accrnals npon termination of 
employment. 

In the fond financial statements. no amonnt is recorded nnless the amount is to be paid out shortly after 
year-end. The foll liability is recorded in the government-wide statements. 

K. Long-term Obligations 

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due. In the fund financial 
statements, for other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable 
available financial resources is reported as a fond liability of a governmental fund. 

L. Fnnd Eqnity 

Governmental Fund balance is reported in five classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily 
on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which those 
funds can be spent. The five classifications of fund balance for the Governmental Funds are as follows: 

• Nonspendable - resources which cannot be spent because they are either a) not in spendable foim 
or; b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted - resources with constraints placed on the use of resources which are either a) 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws 
or regulations of other governments or; b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation. 

• Committed - resources which are subject to limitations the City imposes on itself at its highest 
level of decision making authority, and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. 

• Assigned - resources that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for specific purposes, but 
are neither restricted nor committed. 

• Unassigned - resources which have not been assigned to other funds and that has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. The General 
Fund should be the only fond that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. 

The City Council has the responsibility for committing fond balance amounts and lilcewise would be 
required to modify or rescind those commitments. Likewise, the City Council or a body or official 
delegated by the City Council may assign unspent budgeted amounts to specific purposes in the General 
Fund at year end based on Department requests. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is tlie government's intent to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. When committed, assigned and 
unassigned resources are available for use, it is the government's practice to use committed or assigned 
resources first, and then unassigned resources as they are needed. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Jnne 30, 2012 

Note 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 

M. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost 

Statement No. 18 of the Government Accounting Standards Board entitled: "Accounting for Municipal 
Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs" requires the City to record a liability for the 
estimated costs of landfill closure and postclosure care, as required by government authorities. 

State and federal regulations require that the City place a final cover on its current operating landfills 
when waste is no longer accepted and to perform ce1tain maintenance and monitoring functions at these 
sites for a period of thirty years after closure. In addition to operating expenditures related to current 
activities of the landfills, a related liability is required to be recognized based on the future closure and 
postclosure care costs that will be paid near or after the date that the lm1dfills stop accepting waste. The 
City of Saco has one landfill, closure of which is complete. Some monitoring costs will be required iu the 
futnre, however these costs are uot deemed to be material and were therefore not recorded as a liability. 

Note 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The City's policy is to iuvest all available fuuds at the highest possible rates, in conformance with legal 
and administrative guidelines, while avoiding unreasonable risk. 

Deposits 
Custodial Credit Risk- City Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, 
the City's deposits may not be returned to it. The City does have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 
This policy details eligibility for authorization to include banks or savings and loans that are a member of 
the FDIC and meet the following minimnm credit criteria: (1) qualify as a depository of public funds in 
the State of Maine as defined in Title 30-A, Section 5706 of the Maine Revised Statutes, (2) have a 
Highline Data Peer Group rating of a 30 or better and (3) have a Finm1cial Publishing rating of a 125 or 
better. As of June 30, 2012, the City reported deposits of $1,279,695 with a bank balance of $1,582,777. 
Of the City's bank balances of $1,582,777, $34,068 was exposed to custodial credit risk. The balance of 
$1,548,709 was covered by the F.D.I.C. or by additional insurance purchased on behalf of the City by the 
respective banking institutions. 

Deposits have been reported as follows: 

Reported in governmental funds $ 1,279.695 

Total deposits $1,295,695 

Investments 
Custodial Credit Risk- City Investments: For investments, this is the risk tbat in the event of failure of the 
counterpaity, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of an outside party. The City does have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk as 
is outlined above. Of tile City's $1,848,122 in investments, 100% was collateralized by underlying 
securities held by the related bank in the City's name. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2012 

Note 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued 

At June 30, 2012, the City had 1he following investments and maturities: 

Money market funds 
Mutual funds 
Stock 
Savings bonds 
Repurchase agreements 
Total investments 

Fair 
Value 

$ 156,225 
854,448 
312,951 
182,014 
342,484 

$1,848,122 

Investments have been repmted as follows: 

Not 
Applicable 

$ 156,225 
854,448 
312,951 

30,724 
342,484 

$1,696,832 

Reported in governmental funds 

Total investments 

Less 1han 
1 year 

$ 

$ 

$ 1,848,122 

$1,848,122 

More than 
1-5 years 5 years 
$ $ 

82,426 68,864 

$ 82,426 $ 68,864 

Interest Rate Risk: The City does have a policy related to investment rate risk. This policy details 1hat 
1he investment and cash management portfolio be designed to attain a market value rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account prevailing market conditions, risk 
constraints for eligible securities and cash flow requirements. 

Credit Risk: Maine statutes au1horize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. 
agencies, repurchase agreements and certain corporate stocks and bonds. The City does have a formal 
policy related to credit risk as is detailed above. At June 30, 2012, the City's investments were rated as 
follows by Standard & Poor' s. 

Credit Risk Rating: 

Money Market Funds wi1h AAA Ratings $ 156.225 

Total $156,225 

The remainder of the City's investments are not rated. 

Note 3 - PROPERTY TAXES 

The City's property tax is levied on the assessed value listed as of the prior April 1 for all taxable real 
and personal property located in the City. Assessed values axe periodically established by the assessor at 
100% of assumed market value. Each prope1ty must be reviewed no less than once every four years. 
The assessed value for 1he list on April 1, 2011, upon which the levy for 1he year ended June 30, 2012 
was based, was $2,116,404,600. This assessed value was 100% of1he estimated market value and 104% 
of 1he 2012 state valuation of $2,031,850,000. 

The City is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy taxes up to 105% of its net budgeted 
expenditures for the related fiscal period. The amount raised in excess of 100% is referred to as overlay, 
and amounted to $1,151,961 for the year ended June 30, 2012. 

Tax liens are placed on real prope1ty within twelve months following the tax commitment date if taxes 
are delinquent. The City has the authority to foreclose on property eighteen months after the filing of 1he 
lien if tax liens and associated costs remain unpaid. 
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Note 3 - PROPERTY TAXES, Continued 

Property taxes levied during the year were recorded as receivables at the time the levy was made. The 
receivables collected during the year and in the first sixty days following the end of the fiscal year have 
been recorded as revenues. The remaining receivables have been recorded as deferred revenues. 

The following summarizes the 2011-2012 and 2010-2011 levies respectively: 

2011-2012 2010-2011 

Assessed Value $2,116,404,600 $2,101,430,400 
Tax Rate (per $1,000) 14.42 13.82 
Commitment $30,518,554 $29,041,768 
Supplemental Taxes Assessed 16,428 108,736 

30,534,982 $29,150,504 

Less: Collections and Abatements 29.702,356 28,124,197 

Receivable at June 30, 2012 and 2011 $832,626 $1026307 

Due Dates 8/12/11 9/10/10 
2/10/12 3/11/11 

Interest Rates on Delinquent Taxes 7.0% 8.0% 

Collection Rate 97.27% 96.48% 

Of the total taxes committed for the year ended June 30, 2012, $484,764, was allocated to the Saco 
Island TIF District, $32,979 was allocated to First Light Technology, Inc., $222,941 was allocated to the 
Spring Hill TIF, $58,082 was allocated to Industrial Park (People's Choice FCU), $18,616 was allocated 
to Incon/Franklin Fuels, $1,101 was allocated to Saco Island Renaissance, and $76,654 was allocated to 
Park North under the approved incremental tax levied on the Tax Increment Financing Districts' 
"captured assessed value" (see Note 10). 
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In accordance with GASE Statement No. 34, the City has reported all capital assets including 
infrastructure in the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets. The City elected to use the "modified 
approach" as defined by GASE Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. As a result, no 
accumulated depreciation or depreciation expense has been recorded for these assets. A more detailed 
discussion of the "modified approach" is presented in the Required Supplementary Information section 
of this report. All other capital assets were reported using the basic approach whereby accumulated 
depreciation and depreciation expense has been recorded. The table below presents summary 
information on non-depreciable assets for the years ending June 30, 2011 and 2012. 

Capital assets of the City for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2012 consisted of the following: 

Histo1ical Accumulated Net Net 
Cost DeEreciation Cost 2012 Cost 2011 

Governn1ental Activities: 
Modified Approach: 

Catch basins and manholes $ 2,302,711 2,302,711 2,302,711 
Starin drainage 17,998,406 17,998,406 17,998,406 
Sidewalks 1,798,331 1,798,331 1,676,434 
Street Pavement System 13,426,915 13,426,915 13,033,779 
Traffic signals 851,455 851,455 851,455 
Street signs 44,818 44,818 44,818 
Land 5,328,042 5,328,042 5,328,042 

Total Governmental Activities 41,750,678 41,750,678 41,235,645 

Business-type Activities: 
Sewer pipe 14,918,272 14,918,272 14,918,272 

Total Business-type Activities $ 14,918,272 14,918,272 14,918,272 

Balance Balance 
July 1, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012 

Governmental Activities: 
Buildings and Improvements $ 17,804,590 $ 264,117 $ $ 18,068,707 
Vehicles 5,010,596 245,788 (110,553) 5,145,831 
Machine1y and Equipment 4,391,304 442,075 (118,685) 4,714,694 
Total 27,206,490 951,980 (229,238) 27,929,232 

Accumulated Depreciation: 
Buildings and Improvements (6,821,045) (335,632) (7,156,677) 
Vehicles (3,132,080) (396,854) 110,553 (3,418,381) 
Machine1y and Equipment (3,744,362) (209,404) 118,685 (3,835,081) 
Total (13,697,487) (941,890) 229,238 (14,410,139) 

Total Governmental Activities $ 13,509,003 $ 10,090 $ $ 13,519,093 
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Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued 

The change in accumulated depreciation can be further detailed by major class of assets as follows: 

Buildings $ (335,632) 
Vehicles (286,301) 
Equipment (90,719} 
TOTAL $ (712,652} 

Balance 
July 1, 2011 

Business-type Activities: 
Buildings and Improvements $ 9,083,468 

Vehicles 95,094 
Machinery and Equipment 1,626,590 

Total 10,805,152 

Accumulated Depreciation: 
Buildings and Improvements (2,835,562) 

Vehicles (53,152) 

Machinery and Equipment (1,079,479) 

Total (3,968, 193) 

Total Business-type Activities $6,836,959 

Increases 

$ 162,353 

45,033 
4,003 

211,389 

(192,127) 

(16,983) 

(79,395) 

(288,505) 

$ (77,116) 

Decreases 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
June 30, 2012 

$9,245,821 
140,127 

1,630,593 

11,016,541 

(3,027,689) 

(70,135) 
(1,158,874) 

( 4,256,698) 

$6,759,843 

The change in accumulated depreciation can be further detailed by major class of assets as follows: 

Buildings 
Vehicles 
Equipment 
TOTAL 

$ (192,127) 
(16,983) 
(79,395} 

$ (288,505} 

For the year ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, depreciation expense on capital assets was charged to the government 
functions as follows: 

General Government 
Public Safety - Police 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Public Safety - Fire 
Total Depreciation Expense 

2012 
$ 130,242 

164,447 
267,782 
44,679 

334 740 
$ 941,890 

2011 
132,970 
145,845 
307,433 

60,179 
321699 
968,126 

For the year ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, repairs and maintenance expenses on capital and infrastrncture assets 
were charged to the government functions as follows: 

Public Safety - Police 
Public Safety - Fire/ Ambulance 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 
Capital Improvement Projects 
Total Repairs & Maintenance Expense 
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2012 
$ 11,631 

15,144 
21,447 
20,611 
30426 

$ 99,259 

2011 
14,611 
21,000 
78,028 
28,082 

581 786 
723,507 
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Note 5 • COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

The City's policy relating to compensated absences is described in Note 1. The long-term portion of this 
debt, amounting to $1,224,016 for governmental activities and $70,582 for business-type activities at 
June 30, 2012, is expected to be paid in future years from future resources. ill prior years, compensated 
absences have been liquidated primarily by the general fund and the enterprise fund, with a minor 
amount being paid from ce1tain special revenue funds. 

Note 6 ·SHORT-TERM DEBT 

The City issued a tax anticipation note to cover the cash sho1tfall during the fiscal year. The amount of 
the tax anticipation notes issued were $2,400,000 and $1,500,000. The City paid off one of the tax 
anticipation notes in this fiscal year. Tax anticipation note activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was 
as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Tax anticipation notes $ $3,900,000 $2,400,000 $1,500,000 

Note 7 ·LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions within the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities for the City for the year ended June 30, 2012: 

Governmental Activities: 

Debt Payable at June 30, 2011 

Add: New debt payables 

Less: Debt retired 

Bonds & Notes 

Payable 

Capital Leases 

Payable 

$ 19,727,007 $ 1,783,016 $ 

445,143 

19,727,007 

4,682,045 

2,228,159 

448,071 

Compensated 

Absences (1) 

Other Post­

Employment 

Benefits 

1,252,900 $ 436,162 

89,004 

1,341,904 

117,888 

176,130 

612,292 

37,987 

Total 

23,199,085 

710,277 

23,909,362 

5,285,991 

Debt Payable at June 30, 2012 =$===1=5=,0=4=4=',9=62=='$===1,7=8=0=',0=8=8 ==$===1,=22=4=',0=1=6==$==5=74=',=30=5=$===18=,6=2=3=',3=7=1 
Due within one year 

Business-type Activities: 

Debt Payable at June 30, 2011 

Add: New debt payables 

1,318,566 409,537 1,728,103 

1,177,500 88,207 1,265,707 

3,322 3,322 

1,177,500 91,529 1,269,029 

Less: Debt retil~d 225,000 20,947 245,947 

Debt Payable at June 30, 2012 =$====9=5=2=',5=00=='$======$===7=0=',5=8=2==$=====$===1=,0=2=3'=,0='82= 
Due within one year 222,500 222,500 

(1) Compensated absences are shown as long-term since the amount due within one year cannot be 
reasonably estimated. 

As of July 1, 2009, the Saco School Depa1tment joined Regional School Unit #23. All School 
Depaitment liabilities were transfeITed to the new School Unit with the exception of the bonds that are in 
the naine of the City. ill 2012, RSU #23 refunded the one remaining Saco Bond. 
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Note 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued 

Long-term debt payable at June 30, 2012 is comprised of the following: 

Original Issue Final 

General Obligation Bonds Interest Rate Amount Maturity Date 

Governniental Activities: 
2007 Infrastructure Bond 4.15% - 4.20% $4,355,000 10/1/2027 
2006 Open Space Bond 4.00% - 4.50% 1,500,000 1/1/2026 
2003 Refunding Bond 3.85% 2,977,057 10/1/2018 
2002 Refunding Bond (50%) 2.00% - 4.50% 1,092,500 10/1/2014 
1996 Police Station 5.60% 2,000,000 10/1/2016 
1996 Route One Sewer (50%) 5.55% 2,900,000 10/1/2016 
2010 Fire Station Bond 2.00% - 4.38% 5,999,000 5/1/2040 
2010 Roads Band 2.00% - 4.00% 2,300,000 5/112018 
2010 Trails Bond 2.00% - 4.00% 500,000 51112030 

Total - Governmental Activities 

Balance Due Within 
End of Year One Year 

$3,475,000 $220,000 

1,050,000 75,000 

1,302,462 186,066 

227,500 77,500 

500,000 100,000 

725,000 145,000 

5,595,000 200,000 

1,720,000 290,000 
450,000 25,000 

$15,044,962 $1,318,566 

(1) The original amount of this note was $2,456,690 of which $1,296,901 has been forgiven by the State. The City's 
outstanding share at June 30, 2012 was $0. 

Business~ty_pe Activities: 

2002 Refunding Bond (50%) 2.00% - 4.50% $1,092,500 10/1/2014 $ 227,500 $ 77,500 
1996 Route One Sewer (50%) 5.55% 2,900,000 10/1/2016 725,000 145,000 

Total EnterErise Fund $ 952,500 $ 222,500 

Grand Total All Fnnds $ 15,997,462 $ 1,541,066 

As of July 1, 2009, the Saco School Department joined Regional School Unit #23. RSU #23 will 
reimburse the City of Saco for all Saco School Department bonds payable when the debt service 
payments are due. RSU #23 refunded the last remaining City bond in May 2012. The balance refunded 
was $2,950,000, the City will not have a receivable from the school regarding this bond in 2012. 
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Note 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued 

The annual requirements to amortize General Obligation Bonds ontstanding as of June 30, 2012 for both 
governmental activities and business-type activities are as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

2013 

2014 

2015 
2016 

2017 
2018-2022 
2023-2027 

2028-2032 

2033-2037 
2038-2040 

Total 

Business-type Activities: 

2013 

2014 

2015 
2016 

2017 

Total 

Principal 

$ 1,318,566 
1,316,066 

1,311,066 

1,236,066 
1,236,066 

3,242,132 
2,500,000 

1,290,000 
1,000,000 

595,000 

$ 15,044,962 

$ 222,500 
220,000 

220,000 
145,000 

145,000 

$ 952,500 
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Interest Total Debt Service 

$ 526,203 $1,844,769 

489,255 1,805,321 
452,120 1,763,186 

414,032 1,650,098 

375,056 1,611,122 
1,437,941 4,680,073 

892,035 3,392,035 

480,015 1,770,015 

259,904 1,259,904 

51,842 646,842 

$ 5,378,403 $ 20,423,365 

$ 26,451 $ 248,951 
19,258 239,258 

11,928 231,928 
6,144 151,144 

2,048 147,048 

$ 65,829 $1,018,329 
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Note 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued 

Leases that qualify as capital leases for acconntiug purposes have been recorded at the present value of 
future minimum lease payments as of the date of the inception. The various leases are reported as a 
liability in the government wide financial statements. The following presents a snllllUary of the capital 
lease connnitments as of June 30, 2012: 

Present 
Total Value of 

Original Annual Minimum Minimum 
Purchase Depreciation Lease Lease 

Price Exr.ense Payments Interest Payments 

Governmental Activities: 
Parks mower 2009 $ 42,100 $ 8,420 $ 20,568 $ 1,762 $ 18,806 
PW Vactor & PR Backhoe 2009 338,322 33,832 247,434 36,091 211,343 
Public Works - pick up truck 2009 60,750 31,248 14,969 648 14,321 
Public Works - dump truck 2009 109,243 21,849 23,855 1,029 22,826 
Public Works - equipment 2008 180,000 18,000 37,831 1,525 36,306 
Copiers - 2011 101,745 20,349 91,229 8,304 82,925 
Fire pumper truck 358,853 23,924 215,326 22,689 192,637 
Public Works - equipment 2007 312,481 31,248 138,839 12,519 126,320 
Public Works - equipment 2005 626,532 125,306 152,814 10,160 142,654 
Parks & Rec - Tractor - 2010 57,892 5,789 50,393 9,113 41,280 
Public Works -Trackless Sidewalk Plow - 2010 135,285 27,057 117,942 21,326 96,616 
Parks & Rec - Wheel Loader - 2010 137,500 13,795 119,105 20,655 98,450 
Public Works - Skid Steer - 2010 27,449 2,745 23,916 4,324 19,592 
Fire/Ford Expedition - 2011 35,585 7,117 28,405 3,049 25,356 
PW 2 Plow Trucks - 2011 264,634 52,927 248,121 21,504 226,617 
PW Chevy Colorado - 2011 21,833 4,367 13,862 769 13,093 
PW F550 - 2011 44,790 8,958 35,971 4,078 31,893 
PW Roller - 2012 23,900 4,780 20,349 1,387 18,962 
PW Loader w/Plow - 2012 209,962 20,996 190,452 32,751 157,701 
P&R Mower - 2012 25,024 5,005 23,309 1,555 21,754 
PW Dump Body/Sander - 2012 42,250 8,450 39,758 4,134 35,624 
P&R Cargo Van - 2012 21,882 4,376 18,524 1,273 17,251 
P&R Minivan - 2012 24,863 4,973 20,740 1,425 19,315 
FD Fire Equipment- 2012 68,381 6,838 64,633 7,025 57,608 
PWF450-2012 60,344 12,069 57 037 6199 50 838 

$ 2,015,382 $ 235,294 $ 1 780 088 

The annual requirements to amortize Capital Lease Obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2012 for the 
Governmental activities are as follows: 

Total Lease 
Year Pri11ci2al Interest Obligation 
2013 409,537 72,450 481,987 
2014 349,935 55,597 405,532 
2015 287,766 41,359 329,125 
2016 287,533 30,111 317,645 
2017 220,475 18,870 239,346 

2018-2021 224,842 16,907 241,747 

Total $ 1 :Z8Q Q88 $ 235 224 $ 2015 382 
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Note 7 ·LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued 

In accordance with 30 MRSA, Section 5061, as amended, no municipality shall incur debt for specified 
purposes in excess of certain percentages of tbe state valuation of such municipality. Additionally, no 
municipality shall incur debt in the aggregate in excess of 15% of its stated assessed valuation. The 
City's outstanding debt at Jtme 30, 2012, of $17,777,550, was $286,999,950 below the City's statutory 
debt limit. Total interest expended for all funds of the City was $686,671, for tbe year ended June 30, 
2012. 

Note 8 ·OVERLAPPING DEBT 

The City's proportionate share of York County's debt (determined by the percentage of the City's state 
valuation to tbe County's state valuation) is not reported in tbe City's financial statements. Debt service is 
included in tbe annual county assessment to the City. At June 30, 2012, the City's equalized State 
valuation of $2,031,850,000 was 6.88% of the County's equalized State Valuation of $29,638,800,000. 
The City's share is 6.88%, or $803,184 of York County's $11,674,180 long-term debt outstanding as of 
June 30, 2012. 

The Biddeford-Saco-Old Orchard Beach Transit Committee had long-term debt of $429,506 outstanding 
on June 30, 2012. Under the Interlocal Agreement tbat governs this entity, the communities of 
Biddeford, Saco, and Old Orchard Beach would become jointly responsible for this debt should the 
Transit Committee be dissolved. The City's share is 33.33%, or $143,169. 

Note 9 • CONTINGENT LIABILITIBS 

GrantFnnds 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally tbe federal government. Any disallowance claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of tbe applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which 
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although t11e City expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Litigation 

The City is subject to certain legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of 
conducting its activities. In the opinion of management, tbe City has defensible positions and any 
ultimate liabilities are covered by insurance or will not materially affect the financial position of the 
City. 

Note 10 ·TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 

Under Title 30, Subchapter Il-B of Maine State statutes, the City formed a Tax Increment Finance (TJF) 
District to finance certain public improvements to Saco Island, formerly known as Factory Island. The 
expenditures from this development project will be recouped in future years via an incremental tax 
levied upon the Districts' "captured assessed value" over a fifteen year period to expire December 30, 
2016. The tax increment will be held in the form of a sinking fund. The shmt-term financing 
mechanism for the public improvement projects is a reimbursement agreement between the City and tbe 
project developer. 

The City originally established tbe Saco Island Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District in 1985 and 
amended it in 1986. The agreement required certain improvements and required the City to collect 
monies in a sinking fund. The developer and its successors were reimbursed for these improvements. 
The length of tbis agreement was 15 years from the date of approval of the second TIF. 
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Note 10. TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT, Continued 

In March of 1999, the Maine Depaxtment of Economic and Community Development accepted the 
City's application to amend the Saco Island Tax Increment Financing District. It authorized the City to 
capture increased assessed value for a period of fifteen years, add approximately 7.5 acres to the District, 
and revise the program of public improvements, as pait of the City's continuing revitalization effo1t of 
the Downtown and Saco Island, and in response to the State of Maine's need for a train station on Saco 
Island. In addition to improvements within the District, TIP proceeds will be used to organize, construct 
and improve parking areas within 500 feet of the District. 

The City will continue to capture one hundred percent of the first $14,400,000 in increased assessed 
value to fund the completion of the improvements within the 3111ended development progr3111. The City 
will pay for all public improvements in the District, utilizing municipal tax increment revenues on 
retained captured assessed value generated by the District and deposited into the Development Program 
Fund. The City will utilize available Federal funds, to finance a shai·e of the construction costs of the rail 
station, and other grant funds as they become available. The City will not incur any general obligation 
bond indebtedness in connection with this program. 

Also, in February 1997, the City formed a Tax Increment Finance (TIP) District to assist First Light 
Technology, Inc. (the Company) in acquiring real estate, constructing a manufacturing and research 
building, and to assist the City in financing the costs of the Public Improvements or to pay the costs of 
constructing such improvements directly. Under the Development Progr3111, the City will make a portion 
of the newly-generated tax revenues within the District available to the Company for a period of (5) 
years pursuant to a credit enhancement agreement, which is a contract between the City and the 
Compai1y. This portion will be equal to 40 percent of the increased value of the real estate (including 
buildings). 

The remaining portion of the new real estate tax revenues (60 percent) and a portion of the new personal 
prope1ty tax revenues (50 percent, exclusive of existing equipment moved to the new location) will be 
captured for a period of twenty (20) years and used or held for use in connection with the Public 
Improvements. All remaining tax revenues will become part of the City's general tax revenues. After 
expiration of the five yeai· period, the portion paid into the City's general fund will include the tax 
revenues previously returned to the Company. 

In July 1998, the City formed a TIP District to assist Transparent Audio, Inc. (the Compai1y) in 
constructing a building, real property improvements, and additional personal propeity acquisitions. 
During the first ten (10) years of the Development Program, the City will capture one hundred percent 
(100%) of the increase in assessed value due to the Real Property Improvements, allocating during years 
one through five, forty ( 40%) percent of tl1e incremental municipal tax increment revenues from t11e Real 
Property Improvements (the "Real Prope1ty Captured Tax Increment Revenues") to the Company 
pursuant to a credit enhancement agreement ("the Company Increment Portion"). The agreement also 
provides that twenty percent (20%) of such revenues will be allocated to the Company during years six 
through ten. No part of the incremental revenues from the additional personal propeity will be returned 
to the Company pursuai1t to the Development Program. 

The Real Prope1ty Captured Tax Increment Revenues shall be calculated based on real property values in 
excess of the City's valuation of the District as of April 1, 1998 ($53,600). The Company Increment 
Portion will be used by tl1e Company either to pay costs of the Project directly or to pay debt service 
used to finance costs of the Project. The Project costs financed with Real Property Captured Tax 
Increment Revenues will represent only a portion of the total costs of the Project. All additional costs of 
t11e Company in respect of the Project will be the responsibility of the Company. After ten years, the 
Company will have no fmther right to tlie Company Increment Portion, and it will form part of the City's 
general revenues. 
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Note 10- TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT, Continued 

Saco Plaza, foe. (the Company) has developed the real estate constituting the District and constructed an 
80-100 room hotel and allied facilities (conference facilities and restaurant) along with related physical 
improvements thereon (the Project). The purpose of the District is to assist the Company in financing 
the costs of the Project, and to assist the City in economic development in the North Street - Maine 
Turnpike area, and to assist in furtherance of the fodustrial Park Road expansion. During the first five 
(5) years of the Development Program, the City will capture 100% of the increase in assessed value due 
to real and personal property improvements, allocating this captured incremental municipal tax revenue 
between the Company (the "Company focremental Portion") and the City ("City focrement Portion") 
pursuant to a credit enhancement agreement between Company and City. The credit enhancement 
agreement provides that fmty ( 40) percent of the Captured focremental Revenues during this initial five 
(5) year period will be made available to the Company while sixty (60) percent of the Captured 
focremental Revenues will flow to the City for economic development purposes both in the North Street 
- Maine Turnpike area, and with expanding the fodustrial Park Road. During the final five (5) years of 
the Development Program, the City will capture only forty ( 40) percent of the incremental increase in 
assessed values due to real and personal property improvements, allocating this revenue to the Company 
pursuant to the credit enhancement agreement. The remaining sixty (60) percent of increased assessed 
value will not be captured in the final five (5) years of the Project but will flow to the City's General 
Fund. 

In March 2002, the City formed a TIF District (Spring Hill Municipal Development and Tax Incremental 
Financing District) for the creation of a municipal development and tax increment-financing district 
within the Spring Hill section of the Saco fodustrial Park and adjacent areas. The adjacent areas include 
a pmtion of the railroad right of way for the Saco fodustrial Park, a portion of the proposed Saco 67 
Business Park across Route 1 from the Spring Hill section, and a pmtion of the Route 1 right of way 
where the installation of a tr·affic light and a sewer are contemplated. The goal of this TlF district is to 
provide for the creation of serviced business park lots and to permit the purchase of land therefore, to 
provide for additional rail service to an existing industrial park, to provide for traffic improvements such 
as a traffic light required by these industrial developments, and to provide for the installation of a public 
sewer system in an area of industrial, business, and commercial zoning to enhance the facilities for 
business and industrial development. During the first ten (10) years of the Development Program, the 
City will capture one hundred percent (100%) of the increase in assessed value due to the Real Property 
Improvements, allocating all 100% to the Development Program. After the tenth year, the tax revenues 
will flow into the City's General Fund. 

The Spring Hill TIF was amended on October 7, 2008. Boundary changes removed a 12 foot strip to the 
Scarborough line and added one lot to the district. This lot is the site of a new IMAX theater. The TlF 
revisions also create a mitigation fund for the fifth lane in Route 1, which MDOT plans to require for an 
IMAX theater ($118,000), and extends the end date of the TlF 10 years beyond the original 2012 
expiration to 2022. 

The Park North TlF, approved September 12, 2007, is for 100% of the tax increment for 20 years, with 
70% reimbursing the developer for a sewer extension. The developer has paid for the costs and financing 
for the sewer extension and for a pump station serving the project. This includes only large sewer mains, 
not local service mains within the development. The sewer cost is estimated at $3.5 million, although 
financing may double the cost. Reimbursement to the developer continues until the company is 
reimbursed. It is estimated that it may tal<e 11 years to reimburse. The remainder of the TlF --30% in the 
early years, 100% later -- would be used by the City for a program of improvements in the district and in 
the area of the project and some qualifying economic development projects. 
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Note 10 ·TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT, Continued 

The Industrial Park Road TIF was approved March 16, 2007 and is for 100% of the tax increment 
through 2027. The entire increment will be treated in a special fund by the City and used for constrnction 
of roads and sewers and sidewalks including improvements to a portion of North Street and a portion of 
Industrial Park Road. A credit enhancement agreement was reached with People's Choice Credit Union 
on March 20, 2009 to reimburse the company $100,000 for intersection improvements, by reimbursing it 
50% of its taxes each year until it receives the full $100,000 payout. 

The Franklin Fuels TIF (Incon, Intelligent Controls), was approved on March 24, 2008. The TIF 
captures 100% of captured assessed value. The agreement returns 45% of taxes to Franklin Fuels which 
erected a uew industrial building in which it manufactures fuel tank monitoring equipment and other 
electronic detection devices. The TIF retains 55% for City public improvements and Economic 
Development programs through fiscal 2019. 

The Saco Island Renaissance TIF was approved in September 2007. The Mattson Development entity, 
(formerly Harpers), plans to complete approximately $80 million of mixed-use mill rehabilitation 
projects over several years. This TIF is for 95% of the new value for 15 years, and for 90% of the value 
for the following 15 years. Five percent and 10 percent of the project respectively remains unTIFed. The 
funds will be returned to the developer under a credit enhancement agreement. 

Note 11- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Lucia Kimball Deering Trnst is related to the Kimball Health Center through common directorships. 
Beginning in May 1986, the amount due to the Trust from the Kimball Health Center was being 
reimbursed at the rate of $500 per month. However, the reimbursement amount is left to the discretion 
of the Board of Directors. No interest is charged on this loan, which had an outstanding balance of 
$854,200 at June 30, 2012. 

Note 12 • CLASSIFICATION OF NET ASSETS 

In the Government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified in the following categories: 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt- This category groups all capital assets, including 
infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances 
of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduces this 
category. 
Restricted Net Assets- This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by Jaw through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. This category presents restrictions placed on the 
categories of Capital Projects, and Specific Projects and Programs as established by City Council. 
Unrestricted Net Assets- Represent the net assets of the City, not restricted for any project or other 
purpose. 

Note 13 ·DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 

The City's Special Revenue Fund for the Recreation Impact Fees, Ambulance, CDBG Country Village, 
Park North TIF Project, as well as the City's Major Special Revenue fund for the Saco Island TIF and 
non-major Capital Project funds for the Mill Brook Industrial Park and Efficiency Maine fund are 
canying forward fund deficits as of June 30, 2012. These deficits will be funded by future operations 
through anticipated revenues to be received. 
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Note 14 - RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Maine Public Employees Retirement System (Maine PERS) - Consolidated Plan 

Description of the Plan - The City contributes to Maine Public Employees Retirement System 
(Maine PERS) Consolidated Plan, a cost sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement 
system established by the Maine State legislature. The Maine Public Employees Retirement System 
provides retirement and disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rests with the State Legislature. The Maine Public 
Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial rep01t that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the Consolidated Plan. That report may be 
obtained by writing to Maine Public Employees Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, 
Maine 04333-0046 or by calling 1-800-451-9800. 

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 6.5% of their annual covered salary and the 
City of Saco is required to conh-ibute au actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 0% of annual 
covered payroll. The contribution rates of plan members and the City of Saco are established and may 
be amended by the Maine PERS Board of Trnstees. The City's contributions to the Maine PERS 
Consolidated Plan for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $0, $0 and $0 respectively, 
equal to the required contributions for each year. This is due to the fact that necessary contributions to 
the plan are being offset by existing credits. 

Deferred Compensation Plan 

In lieu of coverage under the Maine Public Employees Retirement System, City employees may elect 
to participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with Respect to Service for State and Local Governments). 

Under the plan, employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and avoid paying taxes on the 
deferred portion until the withdrawal date. The plan vests at the end of two years of service and 100% 
at the end of three years. The City expended $96,091 for the year ended June 30, 2012, $77,525 (5%) 
for the year ended June 30, 2011 and $112,554 (5%) for the year ended June 30, 2010. The deferred 
compensation amount is not available for withdrawal by employees until termination, retirement, 
death, or unforeseeable emergency. 

Assets of the plan are placed in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. 
Accordingly, the assets and the liability for the compensation deferred by plan participants, including 
earnings on plan assets, are not included in the City's financial statements. 

Other 

Additionally, the City participates in the Social Security Retirement Program. The City's conh-ibution 
to Social Security was approximately $645,671 for the year ended June 30, 2012, $660,027 for the 
year ended June 30, 2011, and $673,831 for the year ended June 30, 2010. 
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Note 15 - OTHER DISCLOSURES 

Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets, en-ors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City either can-ies commercial 
insurance, or participates in a public entity risk pool. Cun-ently, the City pa1ticipates in a public entity 
risk pool for its workers compensation insurance sponsored by the Maine Municipal Association. 
Based on the coverage provided by the pool, as well as coverage provided by commercial insurance 
purchased, the City is not aware of any material actual or potential claim liabilities, which should be 
recorded at June 30, 2012. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from that of the 
prior year. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage for any of the past three fiscal years. 
The amount of unpaid claims was $0 at June 30, 2012 and 2011. 

Note 16- BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

Through the budget, the City Council sets the direction of the City, allocates its resources and 
establishes its priorities. The Annual Budget assures the efficient and effective uses of the City's 
economic resources, as well as establishing that the highest priority objectives are accomplished. The 
City legally adopts annual budgets for the Governmental General Fund and the Business-Type Waste 
Water Treatment Plant Fund. 

The Annual Budget serves from July 1 to June 30, and it is a vehicle to accurately and openly 
communicate these priorities to the community, businesses, vendors, employees and other public 
agencies. In addition, it establishes the foundation of effective financial planning. The budget provides 
resource planning, performance measures and controls that permit the evaluation and adjustment of the 
City's performance. 

The City of Saco, Maine's budget is prepared and based on four expenditure categories; personnel, 
operations & maintenance, other expenditures and capital improvement programs. The first three listed 
are considered operational in nature or known as recurring costs. Capital Improvement Projects are 
asset acquisitions, facilities, systems, and infrastructure improvements, etc. typically over $8,000, 
and/or those items "outside" of the normal operational budget, these are known as one-time costs. 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds. 

The City collects and records revenue and expenditures within the following categories: 
Governmental Activities 
Business-type Activities 

The Governmental Funds include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Project Fnnds and 
the Permanent Funds. All funding sources are kept separate, for both repmting and for uses of the 
money. The General Fund is where most City services are funded that are not reqnired to be 
segregated. 

The budget process begins as a team effmt in January of each year, starting with an annual strategic 
planning meeting, then from this, the individual departments nse projected revenue assumptions to 
prioritize and recommend the next fiscal year's objectives. The City Administrator and !lie Finance 
Director review each budget proposal, revenue assumptions and all cmrent financial obligations, before 
preparing the proposed document to the City Council. The City Council reviews the Proposed Budget, 
through a series of workshop meetings, with the final adoption scheduled during the first council 
meeting in June. 
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Note 16- BUDGETARY INFORMATION, Continued 

Per City Charter, the level of budgetary control is at the departmeut level. The following departments 
overspent their fiscal year 2012 budgets: Administration $2,682, City Clerk $20,694, City Building 
Maintenance $4,752, Building Inspection $4,186, Parks & Recreation $125,044, County Tax $20,278, 
Debt Service $28,656, and Contingency $122,103. These overages were anticipated and in some cases 
had additional revenue to cover them. These overages lapsed to unassigned fund balance at year end. 

According to the City Charter, the departments are allowed to carry over unspent portions of their 
individual capital budgets which then can be used in future years. For the Governmental Activities 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 the amounts carried over by the departments totaled $363,349 
and $627,819, respectively, with a like amount assigned in the General Fund balance. 

See Statement 6 Within the Government-wide financial statements for a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual for an analysis of the original 
approved budget versus the final budget and actual amounts. 

Note 17 - lNTERFUND ACCOUNTS 

Due from/to other funds at June 30, 2012 consist of the following: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Project Funds 
Fire Barn No1th Street Bond 
Saco Island TIP Fund 
Proprietary Funds 

TOTAL 

Due from 
$6,508,222 

901,915 
312,228 
286,897 

$8 009.262 

Due to 
1,501,041 

745,314 
611,014 

1,370,039 
3,781,854 

$8.009.262 

Interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2012 consisted of the following: 

Transfer In Transfer Out 
General Fund $ 956,000 $889,280 
Special Revenue Funds 475,934 1,527,418 
Saco Island TIP Fund 428,764 25,000 
Capital Funds 750,000 
Proprietary l:<"'unds 169,000 

TQIAL $2,610,698 $2,610,698 

The purposes of the due to/due from other funds are to charge revenue and expenditure activity to the 
appropriate funds. With centralized cash, everything is received and disbursed through the general 
fund. With due to/due from accounts, it allows the activity to be recorded within the proper fund, even 
though the activity occurs within the general fund cash account. 

The primary purposes of the transfers are to match budgeted amounts within the general fund from the 
funds financing the vaiious projects. Due to the fact that one budget is adopted; many projects from 
other funds are included iu the capital improvement sectiou of the budget. These transfers allow for the 
revenue to be reflected within the general fund where the expenditures have been budgeted and paid. 
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Note 18 - FUND BALANCE 

As of June 30, 2012, fund balances components consisted of the following: 

Other 
General Governmental 

Fund Funds 
Nonspendahle: 

Prepaid $ 124,024 
Notes Receivable 7,144 
Principal of permanent funds 181,383 

Total Nonspendahle 124,024 188,527 

Restricted 
Finance and Ad1ninistration 773,180 
Community Services 1,379,766 
Public Safety 313,889 
Public Works 219,360 
Permanent Funds 374,203 

Total Restricted 3,060,398 

Committed 
City Service 2,734 
Public Safety 69,206 419 
Public Works 130,694 

Total Committed 69,206 133,847 

Assigned 
Finance and Administration 5,948 
City Service 159 
Community Services 2,615 
Public Safety 2,432 
Public Works 838,228 
Encumbrances 299,319 
Reserves 363,349 

Total Assigned 662,668 849,382 

Unassigned 3,671,481 (2,633,306) 

Total Fund Balance $ 4,527,379 1,598,848 

Note 19 - NET ASSETS 

Total 

124,024 
7,144 

181,383 

312,551 

773,180 
1,379,766 

313,889 
219,360 
374,203 

3,060,398 

2,734 
69,625 

130,694 
203,053 

5,948 
159 

2,615 
2,432 

838,229 
299,319 
363,349 

1,512,050 

1,038,175 

6,126,227 

Net Assets - Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
the outstaudiug balances of bonds and capital leases payable and adding back any unspent proceeds. 
Net assets are rep01ted as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the 
enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors 
or laws or regulations of other governments. 
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The City's net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt was calculated as follows at June 30, 
2012: 

Capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 
Bonds payable 
Capital leases 
Add back unspent bond proceeds 

Governmental 

$ 69,679,910 
(14,410, 139) 
(15,044,962) 

(l,780,088) 
506,257 

Total invested in canital assets net of related debt $ 38.950.978 

Note 20 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Business-type 

$ 25,934,813 
( 4,256,698) 

(952,500) 

$ 20.725 615 

GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemplayment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions, was implemented, as required, by the City of Saco for the year ended June 30, 
2009. Under this pronouncement, it requires that the long-term cost of retirement health care and 
obligations for other postemployment benefits be determined on an actuarial basis and rep01ted similar 
to pension plans. 

The City is a member of the Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust. The Trust is a multiple 
employer Voluntary Employee's Beneficiary Association. Tiie City is an individually rated member 
within the Association. The Trust issues a publicly available financial report that may be obtained by 
writing to the Maine Municipal Association at 60 Community Drive, Augusta, ME 04332. The Health 
Trust contracted with an outside consultant to assist in the determination and valuation of the City's 
OPEB liability under GASB Statement 45. An OPEB liability actuarial valuation was completed by the 
consultants in October 2011. 

Plan Descriptions - In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides health care benefits for 
certain retired employees. Eligibility to receive health care benefits follows the same requirements as 
MainePERS. Eligible retirees are required to pay 100% of the health insurance premiums to receive 
health benefit coverage. 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost - GASB Statement 45 does not mandate the prefunding of 
postemployment benefits liability. The City currently plans to fund these benefits on a pay-as-you-go 
basis. No assets have been segregated and restricted to provide postemployment benefits. The annual 
required contribution (ARC), an actuarial determined rate, represents a level of funding that, if paid on 
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each yem· and amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities 
over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
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Note 20 • OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continned 

The following table represents the OPEB costs for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 and 
the annual required contribution: 

2012 2011 2010 
Normal cost $ 78,543 78,543 70,866 
Ammtization of unfunded 101,793 101,793 79,219 
faterest 21217 14 870 9 053 
Annual required contribution 201,353 195,206 159,138 
hlterest on net OPEB obligation 
Amortizing adjustment to ARC (25,2232 (16,3362 (8,859) 
Annual OPEB cost 176,130 178,870 150,279 
Contributions made (37,9872 (25,1832 (20,821) 
facrease in net OPEB obligation 138,143 153,687 129,458 

Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 436,162 282,475 153,017 

Net OPEB obligation end of year $ 574,305 $ 436,162 282,475 

The "actual contributions" represent an implicit rate subsidy offset based on a calcnlation provided by 
the actuary which calculates the percentage of premiums which subsidizes retirees. 

Funding Status and Funding Progress - The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual 
OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the years ended June 30, 2012, 
2011 and 2010 was as follows: 

2012 2011 2010 
Annual OPEB Cost $ 176,130 178,870 150,279 

Percent of annual OPEB cost contributed 21.6% 14.1% 13.9% 
Net OPEB obligation 574,305 436,162 282,475 

Actuarial accrued liability 1,830,622 1,830,622 1,423,034 
Plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 1,830,622 1,830,622 1,423,034 

Covered J)ayroll 8,863,551 7,918,078 6,614,983 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
as a percentage of covered payroll 20.7% 23.1% 21.5% 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of repmted amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the 
mmual required contributions of the employer m·e subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of 
funding progress presented as required supplementary information provides multiyem· trend information 
(only one year available) that shows whether the actumial value of plan assets is· increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actua1-ial accrued liability for benefits. 
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Note 20 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer aud plan members) and iuclude the types of benefits in force at the 
valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City and plan members at that point. 
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuaiial accrned liabilities ai1d the actuarial value of plan 
assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows: 

Actuarial valuation date 
Actuaiial cost method 
Amortization method 
Open amortization period 

Actuarial assumptions: 
hlvestment rate of return 
Projected salary increases 
Healthcare inflation rate 

67 

01/01/2011 
Entry age normal 
Level dollar 
30 years 

4.0% 
NIA 
4.0%-8.7% 

,: 

I> 



CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Required Supplementary Information 

June 30, 2012 
 

68 

MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City is required to account for and report infrastructure capital 
assets.  The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets as: 
 

• street system including pavement, sidewalks, street lighting, traffic signals and curbing;  
• storm water and sanitary collection system;  
• wastewater treatment facility; 
• park and recreation lands and;  
• building site amenities such as parking and landscaped areas  

 
The City has elected to use the “Modified Approach” as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure 
reporting for its infrastructure assets.  Under GASB Statement No. 34, eligible infrastructure capital assets are not 
required to be depreciated under the following requirements: 
 

• The City manages the eligible infrastructure capital assets using an asset management system with 
characteristics of (1) an up-to-date inventory; (2) perform condition assessments and summarize the 
results using a measurement scale; and (3) estimate annual amount to maintain and preserve at the 
established condition assessment level. 

 
• The City documents that the eligible infrastructure capital assets are being preserved approximately at or 

above the established and disclosed assessment level. 
 
In 2000 (fiscal year 2001), the City commissioned a physical condition assessment of the streets which was 
completed and dated February 2001.  The City has completed a full condition assessment each year from 2001 
through 2010 using a program developed by the State of Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) known as 
the Road Survey and Maintenance System (RSMS).  A pavement condition index (PCI), a nationally recognized 
index, was assigned to each street and expressed in a continuous scale from 0 to 100, where 0 is assigned to the 
least acceptable physical condition and 100 is assigned the physical characteristics of a new street.  In fiscal year 
2010, the City migrated the road condition assessments to a new program developed by the Army Corp of 
Engineers called Micropaver.  The Micropaver program is a more inclusive assessment tool and the program rates 
the roads more severely than the previous assessment software (RSMS). Using Micropaver allowed the City to 
conduct actual condition assessments on one third of the road system each year and use the modeling function to 
predict condition assessments based on known deterioration rates.   
 
The following conditions were defined and associated to a rating within our asset management system: 
 
 Asset Management 
              Condition Rating System Rating 
 
               Good                            100-80 1 
               Fair 79-65 2 
               Poor                                    64-50 3 
               Substandard                        49-0 4 
 
The City’s Public works Department has been conducting condition assessments in the fall of each.  Based on 
their research and an analysis of the data compiled over the last 8 years, the City has determined that on average a 
road needs to be overlaid every 12 years.  The frequency and extent of the maintenance will depend on factors 
such as traffic volume, the amount of truck traffic, road base materials, and drainage conditions. 
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MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued 

Based on a 12 year maintenance schedule, the Public Works has determined that the paving needs will be 
approximately 13,900 tons per year. At today's asphalt prices, this would translate to a sustainable funding 
allocation of $903,500 per year at the current price of $65.00 per ton. 

Due to a weak economy, financial constraints, and a 
doubling of the cost of asphalt, the City had dropped 
below the sustainable level for maintaining the City's 
road system from 2005 through 2010. In the fall of 
2009, the City bonded 2.3 million dollars to fund the 
road paving program. This has helped to raise the 
condition of the backlogged roads that had been deferred 
due to lack of funding. 

In 2001, the City subcontracted with an independent 
engineering firm to inventory and performs a condition 
assessment on all other City infrastructure assets. These 
condition assessments were then reviewed and updated 
again in fiscal year 2004 and 2008. These other 
infrastructure assets, sewer pipe, catch basins and 
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MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued 

The City's Policy is to achieve a rrrinimum rating of 2 for all other infrastructure assets, which is consistent with 
that for the streets. From June 30, 2004 through June 30, 2012, the City's other infrastructure assets had 
established condition assessment levels as follows: 

FY 2004-2006FY 2007-2009 FY 2010-2012 Management 
% of Other % of Other % of Other System 

Condition Average Infrastructure Infrastructure Infrastructure Rating 
Excellent to Good 69.3% 83.0% 65.5% 1 
Fair 25.0% 13.8% 23.0% 2 
Poor to Substandard 5.7% 3.2% 11.5% 3 and4 

As of June 30, 2001 through June 30, 2003, the City had only 7% of its other infrastructure assets rated below the 
established 2 rating. The City required several years to rehabilitate these segments of infrastructure. As is 
reflected with the June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 condition assessment performed, an even lower immaterial 
percentage of other infrastructure assets are now below the established policy level rating of a 2. As of June 30, 
2012, a larger percentage has fallen to poor to substandard. The primary reason for the fall is that capital funds 
have not been allocated over the last few years in the budget. 

The City is continuously taking actions to rurest the deterioration of other infrastructure assets through short-term 
maintenance activities. The City has over the last year: 

• Finished a 4.2 million dollar upgrade to the Wastewater Facility 
• Replaced 800 feet of sewer on Main Street and 400 feet of sewer on Locke street 
• Installed 3,200 feet of new sidewalk on Route 1 
• Eastern Trail 
• Replaced and upgraded Traffic Signal controllers 
• All City traffic signals are now crunera actuated 

At the end of fiscal year 2010, the City received the paving bond for $2.3 million. The City has been working to 
get the roads back up to our standard. The City estimates that we need to have sustainable funding of just under 
$1 million to maintain our roads each year. The City is working toward adding that to our budgeting process in 
fiscal year 2013. 

As of June 30, 2012, the City had approximately 351,523 feet of sewer pipe with a carrying amount of 
$14,918,272 and an estimated replacement cost of $32,080,875; 3,088 catch basins and manholes with a carrying 
runount of $2,302,711 and an estimated replacement cost of $6,500,000; 266,639 feet of storm drainage with a 
carrying amount of $17,998,406 and a replacement cost of $27,300,000; 711,650 square feet of sidewallcs with a 
carrying runount of $1, 798,331 and a replacement cost of $2,500,000; 148 traffic signals with a carrying amount 
of $851,455 and a replacement cost of $1,300,000; and 991 street signs with a carrying runount of $44,818 and a 
replacement cost of $70,000. 

For the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008, the City expended the following amounts for 
maintenance and preservation of assets of each network or subsystem: 

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 
Sewer $ 170,915 $ $ $ 14,057 $ 157,537 
Storm drainage 19,387 106,045 53,061 262 63,183 
Sidewalks 99,048 25,629 20,675 51,834 8,118 
Street Pavement System 515,164 2,967,403 1,328,699 1,033,744 3,338,324 
Traffic signals 9,141 56,300 19,335 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Required Supplementary Information 

June 30, 2012 

Schedule of Funding Progress 
Retiree Healthcare Plan 

Actuarial UAALas a 
Accrued Percentage 

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Of 
Fiscal Actuarial Value of (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered Covered 
Year Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Ended Date (a) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) [(b-a) /c] 

2009 1/1/09 $ $ 1,423,034 $ 1,423,034 0.00% $ 8,386,002 16.9% 

2010 1/1/09 $ - $ 1,423,034 $ 1,423,034 0.00% $ 6,614,983 21.5% 

2011 1/1/11 $ $ 1,830,622 $ 1,830,622 0.00% $ 7,918,078 23.1% 

2012 1/1/11 $ $ 1,830,622 $ 1,830,622 0.00% $ 8,863,551 20.7% 
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GENERAL FUND 

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not 
allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid 
the general operating expenses, the fixed charges and the capital improvement costs which are not paid through 
other funds. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Comparative Balance Sheets - General Fund 

June 30, 2012 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable 
Taxes Receivable: 

Current Year 
Prior Year 

Tax Liens 
Prepaid Items 
Receivable from RSU #23 for debt service payments 
Interfund Receivable 
Tax Acquired Property 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Liabilities 
Taxes Collected in Advance 
Interfund Payable 
Due to RSU #23 
Tax Anticipation Note Payable 
Deferred debt service payments due from RSU #23 
Dcfen·ed Tax Revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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2012 2011 :-: 
:--
:~: 

842,103 $ 392,101 ~:~ 
l=~ 

436,281 623,755 

t~ 410,320 505,607 
v 
~: 

832,626 1,026,307 
,_-

t=-

113,770 120,913 l~= 
424,321 522,378 r~ 
124,024 140,681 t=-

3,360,979 :--
t~ 

6,508,222 7,661,485 r 
58,359 58,359 r~ 

!:: 

9,750,026 $ 14,412,565 1-; 

868,648 $ 916,873 
208,791 540,178 

78,491 18,908 
1,501,041 3,332,661 

1,518,582 
1,500,000 

3,360,979 
1,065,676 1,259,422 
5,222,647 10,947,603 

124,024 140,681 
69,206 61,040 

662,668 772,662 
3,671,481 2,490,579 
4,527,379 3,464,962 

9,750,026 $ 14,412,565 



CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Schedu1e of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis 

REVENUES: 
Taxes: 

Real and Personal Property 
Change in Defened Property Revenues 
Excise Taxes 
Interest and Lien Costs on Taxes 

Total taxes 

Licenses and Permits: 
City Clerk Fees 
Building Pennits 
Cable Television Franchise 
Plumbing Pe1mits 
Electrical Inspection Fees 
Snowmobile Registrations 
Canine Licenses and Late Fees 
Victualers' License 

Total licenses and pe1mits 

Intergovernmental: 
State Assistance: 

Revenue Shruing 
Local Road Assistance 
Welfare Reimbursement 
Homestead Exemptions 

Other State Aid 
Other Federal 
MERC Host Comnmnity Benefits 

Total intergovernmental 

Charges for Services: 
Police 
Community Policing-Thornton Academy/Saco Middle 
Public Works 
Transfer Station Fees 
Sewer Inspection Fees 
Recreation Department 
False Alarm Fines 
Miscellaneous Fees 

Total charges for services 

Other Revenues: 
Interest Earnings 
Sale of City Assets 
Building Rentals 
Insurance Claims and Refunds 
Planning/Zoning Boru·d and Engineering Studies 
Recycled Waste and Fees 
Unclassified 

Total other revenues 

TOTAL REVENUES 

General Fund 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 

$ 

Budget 

30,559,755 

2,938,785 
132,000 

33,630,540 

85,000 
290,000 
275,000 

13,000 
20,000 

2,800 
12,000 
7,000 

704,800 

1,223,000 
245,568 
25,000 

271,563 
148,000 

42,000 
1,955,131 

35,000 
96,000 

287,000 
36,000 

1,300 
615,000 

17,000 
5,000 

1,092,300 

30,000 
105,000 

69,045 
287,938 

65,000 
40,000 

596,983 

37,979,754 
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$ 

Actual 

30,743,094 
193,747 

3,446,591 
188,602 

34,572,034 

90,184 
339,446 
286,882 

18,114 
39,801 

2,966 
15,352 
6,985 

799,730 

1,256,887 
263,206 

80,608 
286,309 
199,285 
23,695 
37,481 

2,147,471 

32,954 
100,689 
225,550 

44,048 
1,750 

745,181 
15,550 
15,058 

1,180,780 

7,111 
6,520 

50,749 
168,619 

(485) 
17,949 
43,858 

294,321 

38,994,336 

$ 
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Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

183,339 
193,747 
507,806 

56,602 
941,494 

5,184 
49,446 
11,882 

5,114 
19,801 

166 
3,352 

(15) 

94,930 

33,887 
17,638 
55,608 
14,746 
51,285 
23,695 
(4,519) 

192,340 

(2,046) 
4,689 

(61,450) 
8,048 

450 
130,181 

(1,450) 
10,058 
88,480 

(22,889) 
(98,480) 
(18,296) 

(119,319) 
(485) 

(47,051) 
3,858 

(302,662) 

1,014,582 



EXPENDITURES: 
General Government: 

Legislative 
City Administration 
Finance 
Technology 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual " Budgetary Basis 
General Fund 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Budget Actual 

$ 20,600 $ 
284,158 
379,667 
438,526 

20,391 
286,840 
365,681 
403,536 

City Clerk/Voter Registration/Welfare Assistance 264,690 285,384 
Assessor 194,782 177,011 
City Building Maintenance 112,033 116,785 
Legal Services 185,000 177,967 
Building Inspector 207,581 211,767 
Plannin 309,995 308,976 

Total general government 2,397,032 2,354,338 

Public Safety: 
Police/Central Dispatch 3,440,717 3,419,779 
Fire/Ambulance/Public Water 2,726,545 2,712,947 

Total public safety 6,167,262 6,132,726 

Public Works: 
Administration/Maintenance 4,616,892 4,425,191 

Total ublic works 4,616,892 4,425,191 

Culture and Recreation: 
Parks & Recreation 1,144,804 1,269,848 

Total culture and recreation 1,144,804 1,269,848 

Education 16,030,811 16,030,811 

Count Tax 1,079,365 1,099,643 

Unclassified: 
Employee Benefits 2,829,212 2,668,742 
Insurance 159,012 154,433 
Public Agencies/City Agencies 630,421 623,052 
Emergency Management 5,900 5,732 
Overlay 1,200,000 
Conlin ency 137,971 260,074 

Total unclassified 4,962,516 3,712,033 

Debt Service: 
Pdncipal 1,785,092 1,769,136 
Interest 605,849 650,461 

Total debt service 2,390,941 2,419,597 
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Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

209 
(2,682) 
13,986 
34,990 

(20,694) 
17,771 
(4,752) 
7,033 

(4,186) 
1,019 

42,694 

20,938 
13,598 
34,536 

191,701 
191,701 

(125,044) 
(125,044) 

(20,278) 

160,470 
4,579 
7,369 

168 
1,200,000 
(122,103) 

l,250,483 

15,956 
(44,612) 
(28,656) 



CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Schedule of' Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual" Budgetary Basis 
General Fund 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 

EXPENDITURES (Continued): 
Capital Projects: 

Sidewalk improvement 
Street overlay/Road reconstruction 
Storm drainage projects 
Industrial Park Railroad 
Athletic fields at landfill 
Public Works North Street Addition 
Mill District Pedestrian Bridge 
PACTS Projects 
Laserfiche 2&3 
Main & Beach No Signal 
City Hall roof repairs 
Conservation Projects 
Route One Sewer Project 
Stackpole Creek Bridge 
Shadagee Rd Reconstruction 
Tri-Community Camera 
MDOT Grant Match 
Camp Ellis Capital 
Appraisal Conversion 
EPA Audit 
Main Street Improvements 
Edgewater Outfall 
Call Fire Retirement 
Egret Cove 
Ocean Greens 
Erner enc Projects 

Total Capital Projects 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

$ 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Budgeted Utilization of Surplus-City 
Canyover of Assigned Fund Balance 
Transfers In: 

Capital Projects Fund 
Enterprise Fund 
S ecial Revenue Fund 

Total other financing sources 

Transfers Out: 
Special Revenue Fund 

Total other financing (uses) 

NETCHANGEINFUNDBALANCE 

Fund Balance beginning of Year 

Fund Balance end of Yeal' 

Budget 

135,530 
(53,192) 
(19,387) 
11,944 

294 
5,800 

132,000 
23,871 

340 
62,462 
46,524 

174,854 
50,666 
(2,200) 
47,153 

3,973 
23,556 
35,224 
38,294 
83,351 
21,428 

37,000 
859,485 

39,649,108 

(1,669,354) 

822,719 
675,776 

25,000 
169,000 
762,000 

2,454,495 

(785,141) 
(785,141) 

78 

Actual 

$ 99,048 
(50,958) 
(19,387) 
11,944 

5,800 
7,684 

132,000 
20,161 

340 
4,960 
6,954 

170,915 
6,739 

(2,200) 
(9,404) 
3,973 

28,626 

920 
83,351 
21,428 
(8,166) 
29,693 
(6,441) 
16,472 

554,452 

37,998,639 

995,697 

25,000 
169,000 
762,000 
956,000 

(889,280) 
(889,280) 

1,062,417 

3,464,962 

$ 4,527,379 

$ 
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Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

36,482 
(2,234) 

294 

(7,684) 

3,710 

57,502 
39,570 
3,939 

43,927 

56,557 

(5,070) 
35,224 
37,374 

8,166 
(29,693) 

6,441 
20,528 

305,033 

1,650,469 

2,665,051 

(822,719) 
(675,776) 

(l,498,495) 

(104,139) 
(104,139) 

1,062,417 



ALL OTHER NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
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ExhibitB-1 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Balance Sheet - All Other Non-major Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2012 
Total Other 

Special Revenue Capital Project Permanent Governmental 
Funds Funds Fund Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 377,671 $ $ 59,921 $ 437,592 
Investments 62,428 854,448 494,965 1,411,841 
Accounts Receivable (net) 979,180 700 979,880 
Other 38,311 38,311 
Notes Receivable (net) 7,144 7,144 
Interfund Receivables 901,915 312,228 1,214,143 

Total assets 2,366,649 1,166,676 555,586 4,088,911 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 32,934 16,959 49,893 
Accrued Wages 700 700 
Interfund Pa~ables 745,314 611,014 1,356,328 

Total liabilities 778,948 627,973 1,406,921 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 7,144 181,383 188,527 
Restricted 2,113,075 286,223 374,203 2,773,501 
Committed 128,397 5,450 133,847 
Assigned 5,206 844,176 849,382 
Unassigned (666,121) (597,146) (l,263,267) 

Total fund balances 1,587,701 538,703 555,586 2,681,990 

Total liabilities and fund balances 2,366,649 1,166,676 555,586 4,088,911 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

All Other Non-major Govermnental Funds 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Special Revenue Capital Project Permanent 
Funds Funds Fund 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 322,661 $ $ 
Charges for Services 706,320 
Interest Income 25,508 92 23,626 
Other Revenues 208,284 2,100 (4,222) 

Total revenues 1,262,773 2,192 19,404 

EXPENDITURES 
Cun·ent: 

Special Projects 283,632 18,591 
Housing Programs 231,752 

Capital Expenditures 8,281 775,925 
Total expenditures 523,665 775,925 18,591 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues 
over (under) expenditures 739,108 (773,733) 813 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS 
Transfers In 475,934 750,000 
Transfers Out (l,527,418) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,051,484) 750,000 

Net change in fund balances (312,376) (23,733) 813 

Fund balances - beginning of year 1,900,077 562,436 554,773 

Fund balances - end of year $ 1,587,701 $ 538,703 $ 555,586 
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Total Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 322,661 
706,320 

49,226 
206,162 

1,284,369 

302,223 
231,752 
784,206 

1,318,181 

(33,812) 

1,225,934 
(1,527,418) 

(301,484) 

(335,296) 

3,017,286 

$ 2,681,990 

[_ 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special revenue funds are established to account for resources obtained and expended for specified purposes that 
are restricted by law or administrative action. Special revenue funds are established for the following purposes: 

Recreation Impact Fees 
To account for the impact fees collected for open space and other purposes from new residential construction within 
the City. 

Ambulance 
To account for funds received from ambulance billing used for the maintenance, replacement, and other ambulance 
related items. 

Economic Development Fund 
The monies in this fund are generated by repayments to the City from Urban Development Action Grant and 
Development Fund loans to local businesses, and the sale of Saco Industrial Park lots. These monies are used to 
supp01t, improve, and expand the City's Industrial Park and to make revolving loans to businesses within the 
applicable guidelines. 

Saco Housing Agency 
To acconnt for funds provided by the Department of Housing and Urban Development under the Section 8 housing 
assistance payments for low-income families. 

Historic Preservation 
To account for grant funds received for historic preservation. 

National Center for Civic Innovation 
To account for grant funds received for citizen initiative. 

Recreation Donations 
To account for donations received to be used toward recreation programs. 

Wellness Grant 
To account for funds received under a Maine Municipal Association Grant. 

Planning Board Improvements 
To acconnt for contributions by developers for improvement to City infrastrncture. 

Fire Reserves 
To account for donations received by the Fire Department for specific restricted purposes. 

Jump Start Grant 
To account for grant funds received. 

Police Arrest Forfeiture Fund 
To account for fnnds derived from direct arrests and/or joint investigation activities, some of which lead to the 
f01feiture of cash or prope1ty to the City. 

Joe Riley Memorial Park 
To account for local contributions received for the purpose of creating a memorial park for Joe Riley. 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, CONTINUED 

PD York County Tech 
To account for money collected from the County of York for the purpose of PD technology. 

Spring Hill TIF Project 
To account for public improvements to the Spring Hill Industrial Park, in conjunction with a private development 
project. A tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements. 

Fi1·st Light TIF District 
To account for public improvements to the First Light Company, in conjunction with a private development project. 
A tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements. 

Transparent Audio TIF District 
To account for public improvements to the Transparent Audio Co. in conjunction with a private development 
project. A tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements. 

Employee Assistance 
To account for money collected for an employee assistance program. 

CDBG Country Village 
To account for a grant to help extend sewer to cooperative mobile home park. 

Young School Playground 
To account for a grant and citizen contributions received to purchase a new playground. 

PD Grant 
To account for a grant received to purchase radio equipment. 

Saco Island Renaissance TIF 
To account for public improvements to the Saco Island Renaissance. 

Industrial Park Road TIF 
To account for public improvements to a portion of N01th Street and a portion of Industrial Park Road. 

Park North TIF Project 
To account for public improvements to the Park North Development, LLC in conjunction with a private 
development project. A tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements. 

!neon/Franklin Fuels TIF 
To account for public improvements to Franklin Fuels in conjunction with a private development project. A tax 
increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements and economic development 
programs. 

Saco Plaza TIF District 
To account for public improvements to the Saco Plaza LLC in conjunction with a private development project. A 
tax increment finance district has been established to finance the public improvements. 

Emergency Management 
To account for donations received for specific purposes for the City's emergency management initiatives. 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, CONTINUED 

Saco Community Garden 
To account for funds to be used for the creation of a garden following organic practices, provide affordable garden 
plots for growing healthy food and flowers, support a connnunity of gardeners and promote a green and sustainable 
Saco. 

Camp Ellis 
To account for funds derived from parking, boat landing fees and boat mooring/pier use permits at Camp Ellis Pier. 
These funds axe expended for pai·king lot attendants and repairs and improvements to the Pier. 

Front Street Park 
To account for local and federal (Waterfront Action Grant) funds received for the construction of a riverside pai-lc 
on Front Street. Local funds are provided by a combination of general fund revenues and donations. 

Lucia f(imball Deering Trust 
To account for expendable trust fund monies. 

Cascade Trails 
To account for fnnds dedicated to creating and providing active and passive recreational opportunities. 
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Exhibit C-1 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Balance Sheet- Non-major Special Revenues Funds 

June 30, 2012 
Recreation Economic Saco National 

Impact Development Housing Historic Center for Civic 
Fees Ambulance Fund A~ency Preservation Innovation 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $ $ 76,618 $ $ 
Investments 12,469 
Accounts Receivable (net allowance of $35,414) 77,528 
Other 
Notes Receivable (net allowance of$7,142) 
Interfund Receivables 82,851 7,200 49 

Total assets 77,528 95,320 76,618 7,200 49 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 11,336 2,832 
Accrued Wages 
Interfund Payables 540,861 167,965 

Total liabilities 540,861 167,965 11,336 2,832 

Fund Balances (Deficits): 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 83,984 73,786 7,200 49 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned (540,861) (90,437) 

Total fund balances (deficits) (540,861) (90,437) 83,984 13,786 7,200 49 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ $ 77,528 $ 95,320 $ 76,618 $ 7,200 $ 49 

Continued on following page. 
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Exhibit C-1 (Continued) 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Balance Sheet- Non-major Special Revenues Funds 

June 30, 2012 
Planning Jump Police Arrest 

Recreation Wellness Board Fire Start Forfeiture Joe Riley 
Donations Grant Improvements Reserves Grant Fund Memorial Park 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $ $ $ $ $ l,799 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable (net allowance of $35,414) 
Other 
Notes Receivable (net allowance of $7,142) 7,144 
Interfund Receivables 2,500 33,651 4,871 419 100 25,902 

Total assets 2,500 33,651 12,015 419 100 25,902 1,799 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES' 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 575 
Accrued Wages 
Interfund Payables 1,665 

Total liabilities 575 1,665 

Fund Balances (Deficits): 
Nonspendable 7,144 
Restdcted 33,076 4,871 25,902 
Committed 2,500 419 100 134 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances (deficits) 2,500 33,076 12,015 419 100 25,902 134 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,500 $ 33,651 $ 12,015 $ 419 $ 100 $ 25,902 $ 1,799 

Continued on following page. 

88 



Exhibit C-1 (Continued) 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-major Special Revenues Funds 

June 30, 2012 
PD York Spring FiiSt Transparenf- CDBG 
County Hill TIF LightTIF Audio TIF Employee Country 
Teoh Project Project Project Assistance Village 

-------------

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Investments 49,959 
Accounts Receivable (net allowance of $35,414) 
Other 
Notes Receivable (net allowance of $7,142) 
Inte1fund Receivables 507 159,087 203,046 569 

Total assets 507 159,087 253,005 569 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES, 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages 
Interfund Payables 23,236 

Total liabilities 23,236 

Fund Balances (Deficits): 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 507 159,087 253,005 569 
Con1mitted 
Assigned 
Unassigned (23,236) 

Total fund balances (deficits) 507 159,087 253,005 569 (23,236) 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 507 $ 159,087 $ 253,005 $ $ 569 $ 

Continued on following page. 
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Exhibit C·l (Continued) 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Balance Sheet - Non-major Special Revenues Funds 

June 30, 2012 
Young Saco Island Industrial Park In con/ Saco 
School PD Renaissance ParkTIF North TIF Franklin Fuels Plaza TIF 

Play!Eound Grant TIFPr~ject Project Project TIFPr~ject Project 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable (net allowance of $35,414) 
Other 
Notes Receivable (net allowance of $7, 142) 
Interfund Receivables 3,850 2,036 22,029 155,006 50,454 

Total assets 3,850 2,036 22,029 155,006 50,454 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 1,453 
Accrued Wages 
Interfund Payables 11,587 

Total liabilities 1,453 11,587 

Fund Balances (Deficits): 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 3,850 583 22,029 155,006 50,454 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned (11,587) 

Total fund balances (deficits) 3,850 583 22,029 155,006 (11,587) 50,454 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,850 $ 2,036 $ 22,029 $ 155,006 $ $ 50,454 $ 

Continued on following page. 
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Exhibit C-1 (Continued) 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Balance Sheet- Non-major Special Revenues Funds 

June 30, 2012 
Emergency Saco Front Lucia Kimball 

Management Community Camp Street Deering Cascade Totals 
Grants Garden Ellis Park Trust Trails 2012 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $ 100 $ $ 299,154 $ $ 377,671 
Investments 62,428 
Accounts Receivable (net allowance of$35,414) 901,652 979,180 
Other 38,311 38,311 
Notes Receivable (net allowance of $7,142) 7,144 
Interfund Receivables 2,432 2,615 142,582 159 901,915 

Total assets 2,432 2,615 142,682 159 1,239,117 2,366,649 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 16,738 32,934 
Accrued Wages 700 700 
Interfund Payables 745,314 

Total liabilities 17,438 778,948 

Fund Balances (Deficits): 
Nonspendable 7,144 
Restricted 1,239,117 2,113,075 
Committed 125,244 128,397 
Assigned 2,432 2,615 159 5,206 
Unassigned (666,121) 

Total fund balances (deficits) 2,432 2,615 125,244 159 1,239,117 1,587,701 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,432 $ 2,615 $ 142,682 $ 159 $ 1,239,117 $ $ 2,366,649 
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Exhibit C-2 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances (Deficit) - Non-major Special Revenue Funds 

For The Year Ended Jnne 30, 2012 

Recreation Economic Saco National 
Impact Development Housing Historic Center for Civic 

Fees Ambulance Fnnd A ency Preservation Innovation 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ $ $ $ 261,153 $ $ 
Charges for Services 637,945 
Interest Income 75 7 
Other Revenue 65,469 85,207 5,290 

Total revenues 65,469 638,020 85,214 261,153 5,290 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Special Projects 2,568 23,713 3,090 5,000 
Housing Programs 231,752 

Capital Expenditures 
Total expenditures 2,568 23,713 231,752 3,090 5,000 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 65,469 635,452 61,501 29,401 2,200 (5,000) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS 
Transfers In 15,418 
Transfers Out (580,000) (181,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (580,000) (165,582) 

Net change in fund balances 65,469 55,452 (104,081) 29,401 2,200 (5,000) 

Fund balances (deficits) - beginning: of year (606,330) (145,889) 188,065 44,385 5,000 5,049 

Fund balances (deficits) - end of year $ (540,861) $ (90,437) $ 83,984 $ 73,786 $ 7,200 49 

Continued on following page. 
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Exhibit C-2 (Continued) 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances (Deficit) - Non-major Special Revenue Funds 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 
Planning Jump Police Arrest 

Recreation Wellness Board Fire Start Forfeiture Joe Riley 
Donations Grant Improvements Reserves Grant Fnnd Memorial Park 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Charges for Services 
Interest Income 19,232 3 
Other Revenue 1,350 8,194 

Total revenues 19,232 1,350 8,194 3 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Special Projects 1,495 6,069 
Housing Programs 

Capital Expenditures 8,281 
Total expenditures 1,495 8,281 6,069 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 19,232 (145) (87) (6,066) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 19,232 (145) (87) (6,066) 

Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of year 2,500 13,844 12,015 564 100 25,989 6,200 

Fund balances (deficits) - end of year $ 2,500 $ 33,076 $ 12,015 $ 419 $ 100 $ 25,902 $ 134 

Continued on following page. 
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Exhibit C-2 (Continued) 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances (Deficit) - Non-major Special Revenue Funds 

For The Year Ended Juue 30, 2012 
PD York Spring First Transparent CDBG 
County Hill TIF LightTIF AudioTIF Employee Country 
Tech Project Project Project Assistance Village 

REVENUES 
Intergove1nmental $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Charges for Services 
Interest Income 300 63 
Other Revenue 

Total revenues 300 63 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Special Projects 840 
Housing Programs 

Capital Expenditures 
Total expenditures 840 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 300 63 (840) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS 
Transfers In 222,941 32,979 
Transfers Out (750,000) (14,588) 

Total other financin~ sources (uses) (527,059) 32,979 (14,588) 

Net change in fund balances (527,059) 33,279 (14,525) (840) 

Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of year 507 686,146 219,726 14,525 1,409 (23,236) 

Fund balances (deficits) - end of year $ 507 $ 159,087 $ 253,005 $ " $ 569 $ (23,236) 

Continued on following page. 
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Exhibit C-2 (Continued) 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances (Deficit) - Non-major Special Revenue Funds 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 
Young Saco Island Industrial Park Incon/ Saco 
School PD Renaissance ParkTIF North TIF Franklin Fuels Plaza TIF 

Play~ound Grant TIF Project Project Project TIFProject Project 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Charges for Services 
Interest Income 5 
Other Revenue 3,850 29,377 

Total revenues 3,850 29,377 5 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Special Projects 37,838 31,185 53,657 8,377 
Housing Programs 

Capital Expenditures 
Total expenditures 37,838 31,185 53,657 8,377 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 3,850 (8,461) (31,185) (53,657) (8,377) 5 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS 
Transfers In 1,101 58,082 107,314 38,099 
Transfers Out (830) 

Total other financing sources (uses) l,101 58,082 107,314 38,099 (830) 

Net change in fund balances 3,850 (8,461) !,IOI 26,897 53,657 29,722 (825) 

Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of year 9,044 20,928 128,109 (65,244) 20,732 825 

Fund balances (deficits) - end of year $ 3,850 $ 583 $ 22,029 $ 155,006 $ (11,587) $ 50,454 $ 

Continued on following page. 
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Exhibit C-2 (Continued) 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances (Deficit) - Non-major Special Revenue Funds 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 
Emergency Saco Front Lucia Kimball 

Management Community Camp Street Deering Cascade Totals 
Grants Garden Ellis Park Trust Trails 2012 

REVENUES 
Intergove1nmental $ $ $ 61,508 $ $ $ $ 322,661 
Charges for Services 1,453 66,922 706,320 
Interest Income 5,823 25,508 
Other Revenue 9,547 208,284 

Total revenues 1,453 128,430 5,823 9,547 1,262,773 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Special Projects 560 861 85,519 22,860 283,632 
Housing Programs 231,752 

Capital Ex enditures 8,281 
Total expenditures 560 861 85,519 22,860 523,665 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (560) 592 42,911 (17,037) 9,547 739,108 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS: 
Transfers In 475,934 
Transfers Out (1,000) (1,527,418) 

Total other financina- sources (uses) (1,000) (1,051,484) 

Net change in fund balances (560) 592 41,911 (17,037) 9,547 (312,376) 

Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of year 2,992 2,023 83,333 159 1,256,154 (9,547) 1,900,077 

Fund balances (deficits) - end of year $ 2,432 $ 2,615 $ 125,244 $ 159 $ 1,239,117 $ $ 1,587,701 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
Capital projects fund are established to account for resources obtained aud expended for the acquisition of major 
capital facilities. The City's individual capital project funds were established for the following purposes: 

Moody and Main 
To account for money collected for intersection improvement at Moody and Main Street. 

Jenkins Road 
To account for money collected for the purpose of the Jenkins Road improvement. 

Greater Downtown Improvements 
To account for pnblic improvements in the greater downtown area as identified in the Revitalization Plan for Saco 
Island and Downtown Saco. 

Parking Lots 
To account for money collected for parking permits that is to be used for up keep on the parking lots. 

Millbrook Industrial Park 
To account for expenditures related to the City's constrnction of a business industrial park with revenues being 
derived from the sale of lots. 

Roads Bond 
To account for expenditures related to the City's Bond Issue that passed to repair and update roads. 

Trails Bond 
To account for expenditures related to the City's Bond Issue for creation of the trail. 

Open Space Bond Issue 
To account for the bond proceeds received and the expenditures of the authorized open space parcels of land. 

Landfill Fund 
To account for the post closure costs of the City's completed landfill. 

Efficiency Maine 
To account for money received from Efficiency Maine to be used toward reducing power solutions. 
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ExhibitD-1 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Balance Sheet • Non-major Capital Projects Funds 

June 30, 2012 

Greater Millbrook 
Moody& Jenkins Downtown Parking Industrial Roads 

Main Road Improvements Lots Park Bond 

ASSETS 
Investments $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Interfund Receivables 3,200 2,250 5,948 450 219,360 

Total assets $ 3,200 $ 2,250 $ 5,948 $ 450 $ $ 219,360 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Interfund Payables 594,494 

Total liabilities 594,494 

Fund Balances (Deficit) 

Restticted 219,360 
Committed 3,200 2,250 
Assigned 5,948 450 
Unassi ned (594,494) 

Total fund balances (deficits) 3,200 2,250 5,948 450 (594,494) 219,360 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,200 $ 2,250 $ 5,948 $ 450 $ $ 219,360 

Trails Open Space Landfill Efficiency Totals 

Bond Bond Issue Fund Maine 2012 

ASSETS 
Investments $ $ $ 854,448 $ $ 854,448 

Interfund Receivables 14,157 66,863 312,228 

Total assets $ 14,157 $ 66,863 $ 854,448 $ $ 1,166,676 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 14,157 2,802 16,959 

Interfund Pa ables 13,868 2,652 611,014 

Total liabilities 14,157 16,670 2,652 627,973 

Fund Balances (Deficit) 
Restricted 66,863 286,223 

Committed 5,450 
Assigned 837,778 844,176 
Unass· ned (2,652) (597,146) 

Total fund balances (deficits) 66,863 837,778 (2,652) 538,703 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 14,157 $ 66,863 $ 854,448 $ $ 1,166,676 
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ExhibitD-2 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Combining Statement ofRe\•enues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances· Non-major Capital Projects Fund 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Greater Millbrook 
Moody& Jenkins Downtown Parking Industrial Roads 

Main Road ImJ.!rovements Lot.. Park Bond 

REVENUES 
Interest income $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Other revenue 600 1,500 

Total revenues 600 1,500 

EXPENDITURES 
Pro· ect costs 327,267 

Total ex enditures 327,267 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) ex enditures 600 1,500 (327,267) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS 
Transfers in 750,000 

Total other financin sources (uses) 750,000 

Net change in fund balances 600 1,500 750,000 (327,267) 

Ftmd balances (deficits) - beginning of ~ear 2,600 750 5,948 450 (1,344,494) 546,627 

Fund balances (deficits) • end of year $ 3,200 $ 2,250 $ 5,948 $ 450 $ (594,494) $ 219,360 

Trails Open Space Landfill Efficiency Totals 
Bond Bond Issue Fund Maine 2012 

REVENUES 
Interest Income $ $ $ 92 $ $ 92 
Other Revenue 2,100 

Total revenues 92 2,192 

EXPENDITURES 
Pro· ect Costs 376,962 71,696 775,925 

Total ex enditures 376,962 71,696 775,925 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) ex2enditures (376,962) (71,604) (773,733) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) OF FUNDS 
Transfer In 750,000 

Total other financin sources (uses) 750,000 

Net change in fund balances (376,962) (71,604) (23,733) 

f'1md balances (deficits)- beginning of year 376,962 66,863 909,382 (2,652) 562,436 

li'und balances (deficits)· end of year $ $ 66,863 $ 837,778 $ (2,652) $ 538,703 

100 



.PERMANENT FUND 

City of Saco Permanent Fund 
To account for assets received by the City and held in oust. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable 

Total assets 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Balance Sheet - Non-major Permanent Fund 

June 30, 2012 

LIABILITIBS AND FUND BALANCES 
Fund Balance: 

. Nonspendable 
Restricted 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 
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City of Saco 
Permanent 

Fund 

59,921 
494,965 

700 
555,586 

181,383 
374,203 
555,586 

555,586 



CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Non-major Permanent Fund 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012 

REVENUES 
Interest and dividends 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Administrative expenditures 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning of year 

Fund balances - end of year 
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City of Saco 
Permanent 

Fund 

23,626 
(4,222) 
19,404 

18,591 
18,591 

813 

554,773 

555,586 



- ---- -- ----------------- ----- ----------------------- ----- --------

STATISTICAL SECTION 
This part of the City of Saco's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements and note disclosure says about the City's overall 
financial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 
how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed 
over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's 
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability 
of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's 
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic foformation 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators. 

107-111 

112-115 

116-119 

120-124 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual 
financial reports for the relevant year. 
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Table 1 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Net Assets by Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Gove1nroental Activities 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 29,040,076 $ 31,067,773 $ 35,969,003 $ 37,593,942 $ 32,367,887 $ 34,636,209 $ 38,579,789 $ 35,468,881 $ 37,693,246 $ 38,950,978 
Restricted: 

Nonexpendable tlust principal 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 
Other purposes 301,677 275,270 229,138 250,625 308,738 220,016 766,837 4,373,911 (181,383) 

Unrestricted 9,879,061 8,871,170 4,658,456 6,061,556 8,303,871 7,752,280 4,441,414 4,075,998 (823,116) 1,638,400 
Total governmental activities net assets $ 39,402,197 $ 40,395,596 $ 41,037,980 s 44,087,506 $ 41,161,879 $ 42,789,888 $ 43,969,423 $ 39,726,262 $ 41,425,424 $ 40,589,378 

Business-type Activities 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt s 5,664,800 $ 5,341,002 $ 1,034,911 $ 3,821,145 $ 16,855,781 s 16,689,267 $ 16,983,079 $ 19,727,995 $ 20,577,732 $ 20,725,615 
Unrestricted 3,280,868 3,615,269 7,628,663 5,071,893 1,298,491 1,512,925 663,026 (2,757,442) (3,554,871) (3,405,259) 

Total business-type activities net assets $ 8,945,668 $ 8,956,271 $ 8,663,574 $ 8,893,038 s 18,154,272 $ 18,202,192 $ 17,646,105 $ 16,970,553 s 17,022,861 $ 17,320,356 

Total Primary Government 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 34,704,876 $ 36,408,775 $ 37,003,914 $ 41,415,087 $ 49,223,668 $ 51,325,476 $ 55,562,868 $ 55,196,876 $ 58,270,978 $ 59,676,593 
Restlicted; 

Nonexpendable trust principal 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 
Other purposes 301,677 275,270 229,138 250,625 308,738 220,016 766,837 4,373,911 (181,383) 

Unrestlicted 13,159,929 12,486,439 12,287,119 11,133,449 9,602,362 9,265,205 5,104,440 1,318,556 ( 4,377 ,987) (1,766,859) 
Total primary government net assets s 48,347,865 $ 49,351,867 $ 49,701,554 $ 52,980,544 $ 59,316,151 $ 60,992,080 $ 61,615,528 $ 56,696,815 $ 58,448,285 $ . 57,909,734 
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Table2 

CITY OF SACO, l\1AINE 
Change in Net Assets 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of acconnling) 

~ 2004 ~ ~ ~ 2008 M!Q2 W1!!. 2011 2012 
Governmental actil·ities: 
Expenses 

General Government $ 2,558,143 $ 2,545,843 $ 2,647,140 $ 2,939,837 $ 2,470,601 2,388,585 $ 2,783,447 $ 7,070,311 $ 7,504,789 $ 7,681,100 
Public Safety 4,541,135 4,438,847 4,883,614 4,844,961 5,082,323 5,401,015 5,667,340 6,032,986 6,731,354 6,424,834 
Public Works 3,393,351 3,591,566 4,586,385 3,709,977 4,588,755 4,369,642 4,399,733 5,333,756 5,286,138 5,579,364 
Housing Program~ 200,651 205,501 272,246 230,010 254,352 256,359 232,512 256,921 269,668 231,752 
Culture and Recreation 465,507 526,806 626,204 677,646 825,222 915,311 1,008,761 974,158 1,560,056 1,242,758 
Education 21,685,656 23,982,205 25,195,306 26,993,528 28,072,031 29,015,189 30,038,189 16,228,121 16,245,159 16,030,811 
Uncla.~sified { 1) 3,155,801 2,794,827 3,363,144 3,102,707 4,124,321 3,878,74'} 4,407,838 
Interest on Debt 1,610,299 587,724 680,893 756,399 845,217 993,992 1,078,510 851,877 619,990 650,461 
Capital Maiutcnance Programs (1) 2,219,090 1,452,387 1,894,297 2,040,616 1,192,173 788,291 

Total governmental activities expenses 39,829,633 40,125,706 44,149,229 45,295,681 47,454,995 48,007,133 49,616,330 36,748,130 38,217,154 37,841,080 

Program Revenues 
Charges for Services 

General Gowrnment 517,909 804,271 969,798 875,832 800,9&1 751,767 702,886 579,734 529,027 578,170 
Public Safety 403,188 319,482 418,686 588,360 510,056 554,750 759,619 728,711 732,839 787,138 
Public Works 572,310 563,154 489,365 555,752 510,405 281,546 314,!35 278,031 391,176 289,297 
CUiture and Recreation 158,631 251,904 323,471 380,264 464,167 532,934 628,794 705,036 704,178 813,556 
falucation 639,776 791,341 909,182 1,262,613 1,138,301 1,205,550 1,221,754 

Operating Grants and Contributions 9,811,267 10,716,936 10,920,455 13,249,627 14,082,391 13,769,031 14,551,110 575,520 618,630 729,168 
Capital Grams and Contributions 1,271,272 1,027,926 1,437,216 334,586 961,626 300,820 816,653 317.930 2,396,793 263,206 

Total gowrnmcntal activities program revenues 13,374,353 14,475,014 15,468,173 17,247,034 18,467,927 17,396,398 18,994,951 3,184,962 5,372,643 3,460,535 
Net (experue}/revenue, governmental activities (26,455,280) (25,650,692) (28,681,056) (28,048,647) (28,987,068) (30,610,735) (30,621,379) (33,563,168) (32,844,511) (34,380,545) 

General ReYenucs :md Other Changes in Net Assets 

T=• 
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 20,483,851 23,444,228 23,280,894 24,632,416 26,612,796 27,822,609 28,546,137 29,181,715 30,931,696 
Motor vehicle excise taxes 2,532,092 2,763,999 2,883,127 2,904,735 2,916,962 2,854,280 2,684,427 3,531,760 3,102,575 3,446,591 
Franchise lax 151,339 167,212 185,477 215,806 234,343 231,112 275,215 288,743 296,908 286,882 

Grants and contdbutions not restricted 
Homestead exemption 525,682 288,286 242,190 325,496 320,151 337,229 350,300 332,290 271,563 286,309 
Otiier Siate aid 56,126 127,416 55,792 40,444 56,253 34,497 116,628 88,111 143,064 199,285 
City of Biddeford tax base sharing 122,215 101,601 140,0~}J 169,527 92,506 870,163 
State revenue sharing 1,398,876 1,468,881 1,448,360 1,454,903 1,356,308 1,510,442 1,444,817 1,283,196 1,226,004 1,256,887 

Unrestricted investment earnings 224,397 161,479 216,963 295,164 359,620 271,998 170,515 60,475 56,603 56,337 
Misccllanoous revenues 532,913 42,563 47,179 20,705 153,223 386,390 (106,471) 161,875 265,241 160,436 
Transfers 205,344 417,952 660,033 459,249 169,000 

To!al governmental activities general rovcuues/other changes 26,232,835 5,539,389 29,323,440 29,166,923 30,121,782 33,108,907 32,758,040 34,292,587 34,543,673 36,793,423 

Extraordinary Item/Special Item 
Transfer of funds to Regional School Unil 1123 (4,972,579) 
Lega! seulement 1,071,989 

To!aI extraordinary item 1,071,989 (4,972,579) 

Clmnge in Net Assets - Governmental adi\ities (222,445) (20,111,303) 642,384 $ l,l 18,276 .. 2,206,703 $ 2.498,172 $ 2,136,661 (4,243,161) 1,699,162 2,412,878 

Business-type Activities: 
Expenses 

Waste Watc.:rTrcaunent Plant 1,886,353 1,617,000 2,091,519 $ 1,766,445 $ 2,329,012 $ 2,265,113 $ 2,342,255 2,672,053 2,085,365 2,175,804 
Total business-type activities expenses 1,886,353 1,617,000 2,091,519 1,766,445 2.329,012 2,265,113 2.342,255 2,672,053 2,085,365 2,175,804 

Prograni RevcnufS 
Charges for services 1,720,765 1,980,486 2,411,039 2,405,869 2,052,749 2,218,457 1,739,381 2.138,443 2,386,591 2,621,156 
Capital grants and contributions 

Tola! business-type activities program revenues 1,720,765 1,980,486 2,411,039 2,405,869 2,052,749 2,218,457 1,739,381 2,138,443 2,386,591 2,621,156 
Net (expenre)/reveuue, business-type activities (165,588) 363,486 319,520 639,424 (276,263) (46,656) (602,874) (533,610) 301,226 445,352 

General RHenues and Other Changes in Net.Assets 
Unres!rkted investment earnings 42,471 37,983 38,159 45,110 62,726 89,842 38,054 11,989 I !,362 
Miscellaneous revenues 6,682 27,086 9,657 4,179 4,302 4,734 8,733 6,062 21,142 
Loss on disposal of assets (159,993) (260,280) 
Tran.~fen; (205,344) (417,952) (660,033) (459,249) (169,000) 

Total busine.~s-type activities general revenues/other changes (156,191) (352,883) (612,217) (409,960) 67,028 94,576 46,787 (141,942) (248,918) (147,858) 

Change in Nel Assets - Busin«>S-type activities (321,779) $ 10,603 (292,697) $ 229,464 .. (209,235) $ 47,920 ... (556,087) $ (675,552) 52,308 $ 297,494 

(I) - Starting in 2010, uncl=ifieti am! capital maintenance have been recla.•sified into proper functions 
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Table3 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of acconnting) 

Interest & 
Fiscal Year Property Costs on Excise 

ended Taxes Taxes Taxes Total 

June 30, 2003 $ 20,483,851 $ 101,285 $ 2,532,092 $ 23,117,228 

June 30, 2004 $ 21,340,211 $ 134,534 $ 2,763,999 $ 24,238,744 

June 30, 2005 $ 23,444,228 $ 133,830 $ 2,883,127 $ 26,461,185 

June 30, 2006 $ 23,198,593 $ 92,790 $ 2,904,735 $ 26,196,118 

June 30, 2007 $ 24,632,416 $ 109,425 $ 2,916,962 $ 27,658,803 

June 30, 2008 $ 26,612,796 $ 89,857 $ 2,854,280 $ 29,556,933 

June 30, 2009 $ 27,722,016 $ 100,593 $ 2,684,427 $ 30,507,036 

June 30, 2010 $ 28,404,553 $ 141,584 $ 3,531,760 $ 32,077,897 

June 30, 2011 $ 29,026,079 $ 155,636 $ 3,102,575 $ 32,284,290 

June 30, 2012 $ 30,743,094 $ 188,602 $ 3,446,591 $ 34,378,287 
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Table 4 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years (1) 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
General Fund 

Nonspendable 
Prepaid items $ 204,389 $ 549,278 $ 176,006 $ 159,719 $ 574,292 $ 572,792 $ 210,116 $ 383,559 $ 140,681 $ 124,024 

Committed 
Public Safety 61,040 69,206 

Assigned 
Encumbrances 78,483 152,407 144,980 272,118 94,700 109,361 203,705 314,159 144,843 299,319 
Capital improvements 1,998,861 1,120,488 1,007,286 912,072 1,657,932 3,481,440 2,253,647 1,796,397 627,819 363,349 

Unassigned 4,057,992 3,923,723 4,848,829 5,074,180 4,294,605 3,806,172 2,386,202 2,088,590 2,490,579 3,671,481 

Total General Fund $ 6,339,725 $ 5,745,896 $ 6,177,101 $ 6,418,089 $ 6,621,529 $ 7,969,765 $ 5,053,670 $ 4,582,705 $ 3,464,962 $ 4,527,379 

All other gove1nmental funds 
Nonspendable 

Special Revenue Funds 21,430 21,430 14,287 14,287 14,287 14,287 14,287 14,287 14,287 7,144 
Permanent Funds 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 181,383 

Restricted 
Special Revenue Funds 1,805,035 1,848,256 1,943,324 2,027,523 2,081,727 1,867,008 2,570,629 1,621,069 2,640,437 2,113,075 
Capital Project Funds 1,420,777 149,960 74,932 1,180,693 576,502 749,323 757,471 8,397,455 1,541,467 573,120 
Permanent Funds 283,704 344,609 380,013 413,424 516,812 383,739 227,285 275,379 373,390 374,203 

Committed 
Special Revenue Funds 302,966 79,603 129,575 163,992 183,698 208,588 362,515 344,838 92,697 128,397 
Capital Project Funds 3,350 5,450 

Assigned 
Special Revenue Funds 3,159 158,941 204,579 232,788 3,991 3,828 6,175 5,174 5,206 
Capital Project Funds 450,851 1,418,733 1,338,511 1,217,041 1,206,501 1,191,624 1,170,122 1,015,307 915,780 844,176 

Unassigned 
Special Revenue Funds (503,024) (371,765) (92,617) (11,032) (144,012) (615,045) (694,584) (698,369) (2,626,321) (2,036,160) 

Capital Project Funds (927,262) (457,783) (917,475) (2,227,366) (2,097,842) (3,825,890) (3,559,658) (1,347,146) (597,146) 

Total all other governmental funds 3,039,019 3,214,426 3,210,874 3,164,524 2,751,844 3,984,898 767,046 7,597,866 1,794,498 1,598,848 

(1) Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2011, the City reported governmental fund balances in accordance with the cateogories defined in GASB Statement No. 54. 
Prior years have been restated to reflect the GASB 54 categorization. 
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TableS 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
All Governmental Funds 
Revenues 

Property taxes $ 22,993,956 $ 24,278,842 $ 26,703,395 $ 26,196,118 $ 27,696,860 $ 29,258,042 $ 30,278,683 $ 31,899,915 32,219,898 $ 34,572,034 
Licenses and permits 460,663 666,654 828,806 767,988 721,514 697,994 770,778 718,991 691,819 799,730 
Intergovernmental 13,139,320 12,531,595 13,011,645 14,696,750 15,563,796 14,944,449 15,770,048 2,351,390 2,265,104 2,470,132 
Intergove111mental on-behalf payments 1,472,616 1,400,456 1,414,249 1,575,420 1,706,698 1,744,847 1,844,021 (1) 
Charges for services 1,465,386 1,129,684 1,237,312 1,551,849 1,612,758 1,475,024 1,836,494 1,705,310 1,825,724 1,887,100 
Other revenue 1,219,247 969,529 1,178,383 1,084,282 1,079,683 1,215,895 771,583 623,961 703,153 549,709 

Total Governmental Fund revenues 40,751,188 40,976,760 44,373,790 45,872,407 48,381,309 49,336,251 51,271,607 37,299,567 37,705,698 40,278,705 

Expenditures 
General government 1,665,735 1,702,939 1,779,876 1,985,467 2,356,249 2,167,619 2,270,911 2,173,455 2,413,584 2,354,338 
Public safety 4,198,832 4,074,543 4,527,592 4,491,147 4,891,530 5,081,794 5,417,894 5,728,015 5,836,380 6,396,844 
Public works 3,115,397 3,300,696 3,664,176 3,757,464 4,208,601 4,371,335 4,589,463 4,227,214 4,411,669 4,425,191 
Housing programs 200,651 205,501 272,246 230,010 254,352 256,359 232,512 256,921 269,668 231,752 
Culture and recreation 430,672 485,750 585,146 638,353 786,248 879,544 1,071,275 1,105,116 1,227,045 l,269,848 
Education 21,187,285 22,210,411 23,781,057 24,778,973 26,452,186 27,137,919 28,245,606 16,228,121 16,245,159 16,030,811 
Maine PERS on-behalf payments 1,472,616 1,400,456 1,414,249 1,575,420 1,706,698 1,744,847 1,844,021 (1) 
Unclassified 3,135,612 2,978,695 2,936,151 3,082,856 3,228,039 2,920,479 3,386,926 3,512,921 3,864,068 4,014,256 
County Tax 795,896 747,821 772,182 859,723 896,282 958,270 1,020,912 1,014,574 1,079,365 1,099,643 
Debt Service 

Principal 1,733,499 1,742,045 1,737,045 1,387,045 1,399,545 1,397,045 1,617,045 963,566 1,699,964 1,769,136 
Interest and other charges 1,134,492 850,151 1,024,189 932,670 885,354 993,992 1,078,510 851,877 619,990 650,461 

Capital Improvements 4,811,703 1,913,923 5,337,723 4,390,889 3,543,250 6,968,816 2,940,262 2,847,513 7,428,554 l,783,800 
Total Governmental Fund expenditures 43,882,390 41,612,931 47,831,632 48,110,017 50,608,334 54,878,019 53,715,337 38,909,293 45,095,446 40,026,080 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 956,606 1,693,259 1,428,089 1,109,530 1,392,265 900,148 1,225,994 1,721,755 2,610,698 
Proceeds from capital lease financing 743,678 2,680,585 473,000 945,796 343,479 705,775 314,096 468,637 445,142 
Proceeds from advance refunding of debt 5,162,057 
Payment from advance refunding of debt (5,162,057) 
Bond proceeds 1,500,000 4,355,000 8,799,000 
Transfers out (751,262) (l,756,091) (1,033,226) (968,841) (1,109,530) (1,392,265) (900,148) (1,225,994) (1,721,755) (2,441,698) 

Total Governmental Fund other financing sources (uses) 949,022 (l,756,091) 3,340,618 2,432,248 945,796 7,275,479 705,775 9,113,096 468,637 614,142 

Extraordinary item/special item 
Transfer of funds to Regional School Unit #23 (l,143,514) 
Legal settlement 1,071,989 

Total extraordinary item/special item 1,071,989 (1,143,514) 

Net change in fund balance $ (2,182,180) $ (2,392,262) $ (117,224) $ 194,638 $ (209,240) $ 1,733,711 $ (l,737,955) $ 6,359,855 $ (6,921,111) $ 866,767 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 
expenditures 7.34% 6.53% 6.50% 5.58% 4.85% 4.99o/o 5.38% 4.91% 6.31% 6.28% 

(1) Effective July 1, 2009, the Saco School Department joined Regional School Unit #23 and no longer records on-behalf payments. 
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Table6 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Assessed Value and State Equalized Value of Taxable Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Assessed 

Total Total Value as a 
Real Property Less Taxable Direct State Percentage 

Years Residential Commercial Personal Tax Exempt Assessed Tax Equalized of Equalized 
ended Property Property Property Real Property Value (1) Rate Value (2) Value 

June 30, 2003 $ 626,598,500 $ 271,213,900 $ 61,900,300 $ 62,347,800 $ 897,364,900 21.82 $ 1,155,650,000 77.7% 

June 30, 2004 861,989,300 285,046,008 62,688,800 73,234,208 1,136,489,900 18.03 1,310,350,000 86.7% 

June 30, 2005 1,146,258,600 350,740,200 64,187,600 92,363,800 1,468,822,600 15.37 1,553,400,000 94.6% 

June 30, 2006 1,395,948,300 470,733,500 66,373,500 143,289,500 1,789,765,800 12.44 1,805,400,000 99.1% 

June 30, 2007 1,528,803,300 456,650,500 74,136,900 129,638,200 1,929,952,500 12.27 1,987,550,000 97.1% 

June 30, 2008 1,559,973,158 492,623,102 76,748,500 134,287,860 1,995,056,900 12.84 2,170,350,000 91.9% 

June 30, 2009 1,615,303,700 486,006,300 78,671,900 128,498,900 2,051,483,000 13.13 2,121,100,000 96.7% 

June 30, 2010 1,697,751,700 430,422,500 71,558,100 129,405,300 2,070,327,000 13.13 2,128,450,000 97.3% 

June 30, 2011 1,727,706,700 437,609,000 77,517,300 141,402,600 2,101,430,400 13.31 2,099,800,000 100.1 % 

June 30, 2012 1,749,744,400 440,556,600 67,397,900 141,294,300 2,116,404,600 13.90 2,031,850,000 104.2% 

(1) Saco Assessing Office 
(2) State of Maine, Bureau of Taxation 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30, 2003 

June 30, 2004 (I) 

June 30, 2005 

June 30, 2006 

June 30, 2007 

June 30, 2008 

June 30, 2009 

June 30, 2010 

June 30, 2011 

June 30, 2012 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Property Tax Rates ~ All Direct and Overlapping 

Governments (Per $1,000 of Assessed Value) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Direct OverlaI!ning 
Municipal School County 
Tax Rate Tax Rate Tax Rate 

8.97 12.85 0.88 

7.01 11.02 0.67 

5.61 9.76 0.53 

4.53 7.91 0.52 

4.98 7.29 0.46 

5.10 7.74 0.48 

5.42 7.71 0.29 

5.29 7.84 0.49 

5.58 7.73 0.51 

6.34 7.56 0.52 

Source: Saco Assessing Office 

(1) City began valuation adjustlnents to bring values to 95% of state equalized value by 2006. 
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Total 
Tax Rate 

22.70 

18.70 

15.90 

12.96 

12.73 

13.32 

13.42 

13.62 

13.82 

14.42 



Table 8 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Principal Property Taxpayers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2012 2003 
Percentage Percentage 

Current year of Total Current year of Total 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value 

General Dynamics Armament Systems $ 36,906,000 1 1.74% $ 21,401,500 I 2.38% 

Central Maine Power Co. 20,700,200 2 0.98% 10,653,500 3 1.19% 

Ferry Road Associates 18,780,100 3 0.89% 

Thornton Academy 16,774,500 4 0.79% 5,467,100 7 0.61% 

Saco lleal Estate Holdings 13,821,200 5 0.65% 

Biddeford & Saco Water Co. 12,975,000 6 0.61% 8,364,400 4 0.93% 

FPL Energy Maine Hydro LLC 11,855,800 7 0.56% 10,940,000 2 1.22% 

Saco & Biddeford Savings Institution 11,267,800 8 0.53% 4,917,300 8 0.55% 

Shaw's Supe1market 9,971,600 9 0.47% 6,797,700 5 0.76% 

Sweetser 9,059,800. 10 0.43% 4,419,900 9 0.49% 

1-lannaford Brothers Co. 5,996,400 6 0.67% 

Caleb Affordable Housing 4,218,100 10 0.47% 

Total Principal Taxpayers 7.66% 3.57% 
All Other Taxpayers 92.34% 96.43% 

Source: Saco Assessing Office 
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Table 9 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Collected within the Collections Total Collections 

Total Tax Fiscal Year of the Levy in to Date 
Fiscal Year Levy for Percentage Subsequent Percentage 

Ended Fiscal Year (1) Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy 

June 30, 2003 $ 20,370,183 $ 19,742,902 96.92% $ 619,297 $ 20,362,199 99.96% 

June 30, 2004 21,329,954 20,518,814 96.20% 808,844 21,327,658 99.99% 

June 30, 2005 23,434,356 22,682,803 96.79% 749,990 23,432,793 99.99% 

June 30, 2006 23,266,389 22,647,952 97.34% 616,987 23,264,939 99.99% 

June 30, 2007 24,607,762 24,054,072 97.75% 551,584 24,605,656 99.99% 

June 30, 2008 26,589,343 25,729,582 96.77% 846,154 26,575,736 99.95% 

June 30, 2009 27,537,071 26,583,594 96.54% 937,223 27,520,817 99.94% 

June 30, 2010 28,265,095 27,171,529 96.13% 1,046,115 28,217,644 99.83% 

June 30, 2011 29,150,504 28,124,197 96.48% 623,070 28,747,267 98.62% 

June 30, 2012 30,534,982 29,702,356 97.27% 29,702,356 97.27% 

(1) Tax commitment plus supplemental taxes assessed during the fiscal year. 
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CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
General General 

Fiscal Year Obligation Capital Obligation Capital 
ended Debt Leases Debt Leases 

June 30, 2003 $ 17,235,867 $ 1,012,490 $ 3,720,000 $ 

June 30, 2004 15,846,323 750,062 3,367,500 

June 30, 2005 14,461,778 3,449,932 3,015,000 

June 30, 2006 14,574,733 3,197,961 2,665,000 

June 30, 2007 13,172,688 3,359,272 2,320,000 

June 30, 2008 16,130,643 2,808,019 1,975,000 

June 30, 2009 14,513,598 2,518,991 1,630,000 

June 30, 2010 21,698,052 1,738,164 1,402,500 

June 30, 2011 19,727,007 1,783,016 1,177,500 

June 30, 2012 15,044,962 1,780,088 952,500 

Note: Details regarding the City1s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements. 

(1)- See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on table 14 for 
personal income and population data. 
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Table 10 

Total Percentage 
Primary of Personal Per 

Government Income (1) Capita (1) 

$ 21,968,357 4.97% $ 1,246 

19,963,885 4.52% 1,142 

20,926,710 4.74% 1,244 

20,437,694 4.63% 1,215 

18,851,960 4.27% 1,121 

20,913,662 4.73% 1,243 

18,662,589 4.22% 1,109 

24,838,716 5.62% 1,477 

22,687,523 4.67% 1,228 

17,777,550 3.66% 962 



Table 11 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

State 
General Assessed 

Fiscal Obligation Value of Per 
Year Debt Property (1) Capita (2) 

2003 $ 20,955,867 1.81% $ 

2004 19,213,823 1.47% 

2005 17,476,778 1.47% 

2006 17,239,733 0.95% 

2007 15,492,688 0.78% 

2008 18,105,643 0.91% 

2009 16,143,598 0.76% 

2010 23,100,552 1.09% 

2011 20,904,507 1.00% 

2012 15,997,462 0.79% 

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the 
notes to the financial statements. 

(1)- See the schedule of Assessed Value and State Equalized Value of 
Taxable Property on table 6 for property value data. 

(2) - Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographics and 
Economic Statistics on table 14. 

117 

1,246 

1,142 

1,039 

1,025 

921 

1,076 

960 

1,373 

1,131 

866 



Direct: 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

General Obligation Bonds 
As of June 30, 2012 

Net general 
obligation Percentage 

bonded debt applicable to 
Jurisdiction outstanding govern1nent 

Table 12 

Amount 
applicable to 
government 

City of Saco --'-$---=-'--'--"-'-'-----'-'-'-'-="-'-="'-'-==-15,044,962 100.00% $ 15,044,962 

Subtotal Direct --"-$----"'==='----....:.:==:::.....c"-=.::...:..==.. 15,044,962 100.00% $ 15,044,962 
Overlapping debt: 

Biddeford-Saco-Old Orchard Beach Transit Committee (1) 429,506 33.33% 143,169 
York County (2) 11,674,180 6.88% 803,184 

Subtotal Overlapping --'-$---=-'--'-'--'-'-'-'-----'-'-="---'-"==-12,103,686 7.82% 946,352 
Grand Total $ 

...;:;,.~_...;~;.;;;;.;;;..;.;;~~~~~__;:;_,,,;;;;.;;;;;.;;.:;;.;;;;... 
27,148,648 $ 15,991,315 

(1) The City's share is 33.33% (Biddeford, Saco, Old Orchard Beach get equal share) of $429,506, or $143,169. 
(2) The City's share is 6.88% (percentage of property value for York County) of $11,674,180, or $803,184. 
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Table 13 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Statutory Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
In Accordance with 30 MRSA, Section 5061 as Amended 

Total net debt 
applicable to limit 

Fiscal Total net debt Legal Debt as a percentage 
Year Debt Limit applicable to limit Margin of debt limit 

2003 $ 173,347,500 $ 21,968,357 $ 151,379,143 12.67% 

2004 196,552,500 19,963,885 176,588,615 10.16% 

2005 233,010,000 20,926,710 212,083,290 8.98% 

2006 270,810,000 20,437,694 250,372,306 7.55% 

2007 298,132,500 18,851,960 279,280,540 6.32% 

2008 325,552,500 20,913,662 304,638,838 6.42% 

2009. 318,165,000 18,662,589 299,502,411 5.87% 

2010 319,267,500 24,838,716 294,428,784 7.78% 

2011 314,970,000 22,687,523 292,282,477 7.20% 

2012 304,777,500 17,777,550 286,999,950 5.83% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2012 
Percent of 

Outstanding state assessed value Allowable 
bonds and leases $2,031,850,000 A1nount Margin 

For school purposes $ 10.00% $ 203,185,000 $ 203, 185,000 

For waste-water 
treatment plant 952,500 7.50% 152,388,750 151,436,250 

For municipal 16,825,050 7.50% 152,388,750 135,563,700 

Total $ 17,777,550 15.00% $ 304,777,500 $ 286,999,950 
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Table 14 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Per 
Capita 

Fiscal Personal Personal Median School Unemployment 
Year Population (1) Income (1) Income(l) Age (1) Enrollment (2) Rate (3) 

2003 16,822 $ 441,863,474 26,267 37.2 2,866 2.5% 

2004 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 37.2 2,851 3.6% 

2005 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 37.2 2,776 4.0% 

2006 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 37.2 2,823 3.1% 

2007 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 37.2 2,795 3.2% 

2008 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 37.2 2,801 4.3% 

2009 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 37.2 2,878 8.1% 

2010 16,822 441,863,474 26,267 37.2 3,135 5.6% 

2011 18,482 485,300,356 26,258 41.9 3,117 6.8% 

2012 18,482 485,300,356 26,258 41.9 3,103 6.8% 

(1) - U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census (2000 and 2010) 
(2)-Maine Department of Education. Figures are based on April 1 emollment 
(3) - Maine Department of Labor 
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Table 15 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2012 2003 
Percentage Percentage 

of Saco's of Saco's 

Emeloyer Employees Rank Labor Force Employees Rank Labor Force 

General Dynamics 415 1 4.05% 425 1 4.60% 

Sweetser Children's Services 329 2 3.21% 187 4 2.02% 

Atlantic Heights 205 3 2.00% 

Thornton Academy 179 4 1.75% 110 8 1.19% 

Hannaford Brothers 170 5 1.66% 160 6 1.73% 

City of Saco 163 6 1.59% 138 7 1.49% 

Shaw's Supennarkets 135 7 1.32% 170 5 1.84% 

Visiting Nurses Association 116 8 1.13% 232 2 2.51% 

Saco & Biddeford Savings 116 9 1.13% 

Prime Toyota 93 10 0.91% 

Saco School Department 220 3 2.38% 

Holman Cooking Equipment 75 9 0.81% 

Lynn-Flex 75 10 0.81% 

Source: Maine Department of Labor and U.S. Department of Labor 
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Table 16 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Full-Time Equivalent City Government E1nployees by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Function: 
General Government 25 25.5 26 26.5 26 26 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 
Public Safety 

Police 46 46 46 47 47 46 46 47 47 47 
Fire 32 36 36 36 36 36 36 36 36 36 

Public Works 33.25 33.75 34.75 34.25 34.25 34.25 31.6 31.6 31.6 31.6 
Parks & Recreation 6.75 6.75 6.75 6.25 8.25 8.25 9 9 9 9 

Total General Fund 143 148 149.5 150 151.5 150.5 149.1 150.1 150.1 150.1 

Waste Water Treatment Plant 12.5 13 13 14 14 13 12.3 14 14 14 

Total Enterprise Fund 12.5 13 13 14 14 13 12.3 14 14 14 
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Table 17 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Operating Indicators by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Function 
General Government 
Building permits 

Single family 105 67 69 67 53 42 33 56 58 45 
Condos/Multi 28 33 66 53 39 10 7 1 32 35 
Conunercial 87 78 83 71 30 46 31 29 30 57 
Total number permits issued 631 585 565 598 504 440 368 395 381 358 

Public Safety 
Police 

Number of calls for service 21,974 26,054 25,644 25,703 25,248 25,470 26,635 26,681 29,967 30,422 
Number of traffic stops 7,876 8,497 6,681 6,731 5,727 6,105 5,962 6,612 9,675 9,145 
Number of traffic summons issued 1,766 2,213 1,942 1,654 1,124 1,161 1,381 1,485 1,643 1,826 
Number of warnings issued 5,927 5,908 4,548 4,558 4,001 4,395 4,106 4,524 7,419 6,872 
Number of traffic related arrests 183 218 273 246 184 160 176 134 159 151 
Number of non-traffic related arrests & summons 333 465 952 920 843 861 818 923 798 769 
Number of parking tickets issued 551 567 913 911 512 478 418 202 214 396 

Fire 
Number of calls for service 1,928 1,152 668 527 685 544 657 595 535 698 

Ambulance 
Number of calls for service 2,215 1,915 1,960 1,846 2,152 2,315 2,151 2,288 2,289 2,380 

Public Works 
Number ofroads maintained 375 378 382 384 384 386 386 387 387 340 
Lane miles of roads maintained 251 253 255 257 260 262 262 263 263 290 
Acres of public area maintained 358 364 369 379 384 404 404 404 404 414 
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Table 18 

CITY OF SACO, MAINE 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Function 
Public Safety 

Police 
Stations 1 1 1 
Patrol Units 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

F1re 
Stations 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Public Works 
Street lights 1766 1791 1804 1825 1842 1842 1842 1842 1842 1842 
Traffic signals 147 148 148 148 148 148 148 148 148 148 

Recreation 
Parks 10 10 10 10 10 10 19 24 25 25 
Park acreage maintained 100 100 100 100 100 100 135 140 143 143 
Tennis and basketball courts 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 7 

Sources: Various City departments. 
Note: No capital asset indicators are available fo1· the general govein1nent function. 
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